
 

 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED  
ONE- HUNDRED-AND-FOURTEENTH BOARD MEETING  
To be held at 5.00PM, Wednesday 1ST July 2020 
Via Teams 
 

 
Agenda A 

Item 
No 

Paper Purpose Time Responsible 
Officer 

1.  Welcome, Apologies and Quorum Note 2 Chair 

2.  Declarations of Interest  Note 2 Chair 

3.  Minutes of Previous Meeting Approval 2 Board 

4.  Matters Arising  Note 5 Chair 

5.  

Finance and Audit Chair’s Report: 

i. Approval of End of Year 
Accounts 

ii. Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement  

iii. Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Report 19/20 

iv. Approve Final Risk Register 
Format 

v. Approve Risk Appetite 

Approval  20 JP 

6.  Recovery Plan – CBH 2.0 To Note  5 MA 

Q4 Performance Pack – Questions Arising 

   7A Strategic Plan Assurance Report Q4  To Note 

10 

GM 

7B Health and Safety Compliance Report  To Note DB 

7C Voids Progress Assurance To Note KL 

7D Finance Report  To Note  CG 

8. Strategic Risk Register Update Discuss and 
Approve 10 MA 

9. Residents Panel Chairs Report  To Note 5 MC 

10. 
Any Other Business: 
Update on CBC Annual Scrutiny Review 

Discuss 5 
 

GM 

End of Open Meeting  
10 Minute Comfort Break  

Agenda B – Confidential Board Meeting  
11. Minutes of Previous Meeting To Approve 2 Chair 

12. 
Business Development Panel Chairs 
Report  To Note 5 

 
NC 

13. 
2020 Review of CBC/CBH Management 
Agreement – Draft Project Plan  
 

Discuss 10 
 

GM 
 



 

 

Next Board Meeting – 23rd September 2020 
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Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Minutes of the Hundred and Thirteenth Board meeting held on Microsoft Teams on Wednesday 
22nd April at 17:30pm 
 
Present:   
Dirk Paterson (DP) Chair 
Cllr Nigel Chapman (NC) Vice Chair 
Gareth Mitchell (GM) CEO 
Cllr Lesley Scott-Boutell (LSB) Board Member 
Karen Smout (KS) Board Member 
Cllr Cyril Liddy (CL) Board Member 
Julie Parker (JP) Board Member 
Michael Campbell (MC) Board Member 
Paula Goddard (PG) Board Member 
Lorna Preece (LP) Board Member 
 
In attendance: 
Karen Loweman (KL) Director of Operations 
Matt Armstrong (MA) Director of Business Improvement 
Jo Paget  Governance Officer  
 
 
1. 
1.1 

 
Apologies and Quorum. 
No apologies were received, and the meeting was confirmed as being quorate. The Chair 
welcomed all those present to the meeting. Thanks, were given to Stephen Watson for 
helping all Board members to download and get on to Teams Software 
 

2. 
 
2.1 

Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers 
 
No declarations were received 
 

3. 
 
3.1 
 

Minutes of Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes were accepted as being a true and accurate record of the meeting held on 
the 27th February 2020 and were approved by the Board 
 

There being no objections or amendments the Board resolved to: 
i.APPROVE the Minutes of the Board Meeting on the 27th February 2020 
 
4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 

Matters Arising  
 
GM advised that the CBH Business continuity plan will be reviewed as a result of the 
current environment. KL advised that herself and Matt had started to look at this to 
incorporate lessons learnt from these pandemic and other significant events that could 
happen going forward 
 
GM advised that the Risk workshop had been deferred due to Covid but will be re-
arranged 
 

The Board resolved to: 
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i. NOTE the Executive Action Tracker 
 
5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Covid Update Report 
 
GM introduced the report and advised that this represented the overview of events as of 
last week, a lot of which the Board had been aware of due to the weekly Covid briefing 
meetings. He advised that the intention of today was to bring the Board up to date with 
events that were now happening within the company.  
GM highlighted to members that the focus of the Executive was now turning to Recovery 
which MA would update them on.  
 
GM advised that he would address questions that had been submitted prior to the Board 
meeting which were as follows:  
 
1.DMT also share responsibility for an “on call” rota for CBC Cabinet Members and Group 
Leaders over the weekend. - What does this mean? Who, how often, who's aware of rota, 
who has access to it? 
 
GM advised there are 4 Cells under the Council’s emergency arrangements. GM agreed 
with Adrian Pritchard that one of these cells is a Housing cell which means the 
Leadership team around this is GM, MA and KL and they are rota’d on at the weekend to 
provide contact for Cabinet Members and leaders should any issues arise. GM advised 
that enquiries had been very limited.   
 
2. Equality and Diversity – I would like to understand what has been done (if anything) 
regarding EQIA’s where the delivery of services have been changed due to Covid 19. 
This will apply to both tenants and staff. What I want to be assured about is that the 
changes we have made are not impacting adversely on anyone with protected 
characteristics – or if we have have mitigations in place. 
 
GM advised that at this stage this exercise had not been conducted but as a result of this 
question he would be meeting with the Equality and Diversity Officer tomorrow to discuss 
He added that it was fair to say that at the heart of everything that CBH were doing was to 
focus on individuals within our customer base who have particular needs which is line 
somewhat with protected characteristics 
 
Response  
 
KL advised she had written this section of the report almost as a position statement to 
help people such as the Board, Client Officers and staff to track and confirm where CBH 
were in terms of activity. It provided an overview of why CBH were doing what they were 
doing. KL continued that CBH had committed from beginning that they would follow 
Government guidance and would communicate with residents what they were doing and 
why. 
 
The Business Continuity Plan was already in place and this has proved a good framework 
for us to deliver our services in an emergency response way.  
 
The Colchester Strategic Partnership has provided welcome support from services such 
as the Police, Fire Services and Social Care and has helped us as a community in 
Colchester. CBH also have resources through the Essex resilience forum where KL sits 
on the Housing and Rough Sleeping Cell and this has provided consistency of approach 
across the Borough.  
 
KL advised that she would address questions that had been submitted prior to the Board 
meeting which were as follows:  
 
1. We have a high proportion of elderly and vulnerable residents who may be at greater 
risk of contracting the virus. We are following Government guidance and will 
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5.3 
 
 
 
 
 

communicate how we are working in a way that resident will understand. How are you 
communicating to our elderly and vulnerable residents who are not in sheltered --text, 
phone, post, social media? How successful is this? 
 
KL advised that 3500 outgoing calls had been made to the most vulnerable tenants and 
the Lettings Team were seconded to the Housing Team to make outbound calls. The 
Sheltered Housing Team picked up the calls to the over 70’s. 
 
CBH contact rate is just over 90% - where staff couldn’t get through, a next of kin is 
contacted. Information that is held on tenants is up to date as this is used consistently to 
communicate with them through text, emails and letters.   
 
A new batch of letters has gone out to sheltered tenants today to remind them of advice 
on self-isolating but also included an activity sheet with a crossword, colouring and 
recipe. MC advised that he had received this letter and it had been really informative.  
 
We have contacted our Quality assurance advisors to give advice that they can share 
with their neighbours 
 
 
2. We have accommodated people who were rough sleeping in Colchester including 
those who were already engaged with our rough sleeper outreach team--to date how 
many have left accommodation--what are the numbers now--increase in rough sleepers 
coming into the borough--staying in town or migrating out to rural areas?  
 
We have accommodated 38 Rough sleepers. 2 have left the accommodation of their own 
accord and 2 have been arrested. They have settled well and are being supported with 
regular food and prescriptions.  
 
To date, only 4 of those 38 have shown Covid symptoms 
 
NC asked what would happen with the rough sleepers once the pandemic was over? KL 
advised that she was starting to plan with local partners for them to work with CBH to find 
settled supported accommodation for them and escalate that pathway whilst they were in 
good position.  
 
DP asked if Colchester was still experiencing new people arriving to the area?  
KL advised that people were still arriving and due to the fantastic work of the outreach 
team and knowing their customers so well they had been able to identify those that would 
not be compatible in the same accommodation. Rough sleepers had been placed in 5 
different locations across Colchester  
 
Logistics and Planning  
 
MA advised members that CBH were still operating under critical services and this was 
working well. There had been no shortage to running these services due to the 
redeployment framework that had been set up. 
 
With regards staff statistics, there has been a very low sickness in the Company and as 
22nd April there was only 1 staff member off sick with symptoms, 8 off through social 
distancing guidance and 1 off for childcare reasons.  
 
MA advised that a pre-board question had been received which asked if CBH were 
considering furloughing any staff. He advised there was no one that could not do a job, as 
they were either doing their own job or they had been re-deployed. MA continued that 
CBH had considered furlough, although guidance stated that LA’s were not eligible as 
they were in receipt of public monies. MA added that some LAs and ALMOs had applied 
but he was yet to hear the outcomes of their applications  
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MA advised that he was the CBH representative at the CBC Recovery Plan Steering 
Group. The Council were forming recovery around 4 different cells which were ‘Council’ 
‘Economy’ ‘Community’ ‘Customer’ 
Project plans were underway, and CBC were identifying objectives and tasks in cells that 
will form part of their recovery plan. CBH cross all 4 cells and will feed into their plan as 
well as running our own.  
 
MA advised that he would be presenting the CBH recovery structure to the corporate 
management team on the 23rd April, however he highlighted that a lot of teams were 
already working on their departmental recovery objectives and would feed into the 
overarching plan.  
 
MA advised that IT was still working well and CBH had managed to purchase more 
laptops which brought up the total of spare laptops to 14. 
 
MA advised that the year- end process has been continuing and Scrutton Bland were in 
as planned. He advised that year- end figures would go to Finance and Audit Committee 
in June and then on to Board for final approval in July.  
 
MA advised that latest communications to staff went out last week and the letter of thanks 
from Will Quince had been shared and was well received 
 
GM asked the Board to note that CBH are now able to refer key workers who become 
symptomatic within 3 days to regional testing centres, the nearest one for Colchester 
being Copdock in Ipswich.  
 

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Covid Update report  
6. 
 
6.1 
 

Governance Decisions to Date: 
 
The Chair summarised the report and asked if there were any questions 
 
DP asked for clarification around the repairs contractors and if there had been any 
change?  MA advised that these were subcontractors who were used to compliment the 
repairs service. He advised that this was awarded every 2 years, and that all submissions 
had been successful bar one which JP had approved according to delegations as Chair of 
Finance & Audit Committee 
 

There being no objections or amendments the Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Interim delegation arrangements due to Coronavirus 
ii.NOTE the Pay Award 2020/21 
iii.NOTE the Appointment of Repairs Contractors 
iv.NOTE the Appointment of Internal Auditor 
 
7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Medium Term Delivery Plan Q4 
 
GM advised the Board that CBH had received the results of their year-end performance 
which he was pleased to report showed a very positive story. 
 
Dashboard Headlines were as follows: 
Customer - 92.8% 
Homelessness acceptance – 29.9%  
Repairs and Maintenance – 97.81% 
Capital Programme – 96.1% 
Rent Collection – 99.1% 
Voids – 24.29% – Beat 25-day target – remarkable 
Corporate Facilities – 91.0% 
Gas servicing – 100% 
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7.3 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
7.5 
 
 
 
7.6 

 
GM advised that CBH had 3 reds on the dashboard earlier in the year and were feeling 
pressure from the council, but now reported a straight set of green achievements. He 
continued that the turn around on voids had been remarkable.  
 
DP advised he wanted to take this opportunity to note the brilliant effort on rent collection 
especially in terms of our peers 
 
DP congratulated the Executive and advised that this was an amazing achievement, and 
asked when this would be reported to the CBC client team? GM advised that he was due 
to report to them in a couple of weeks’ time.  
 
DP advised that he sent applause to all staff for the fantastic work and that he and GM 
would share at their 4-way chat on the 23rd April.  
 

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Q4 Medium Term Delivery Plan 
 
8A 
 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
8.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Health and Safety Compliance Report 
 
KL presented the report and advised the Board that CBH were following guidance from 
the Regulator of Social Housing in terms of compliance.  
 
She advised that there had been an update with regards to gas servicing in that the RSH 
had stated that they did not expect providers to notify them with regards to out of date gas 
certificates in this current climate. They noted that this was a difficult position and the 
expectation was that all providers should be able to evidence up to date records and 
notes. 
 
KL advised that the H&S team met on a weekly basis to review compliance and to identify 
any issues and actions.  
 
There had been new RIDDOR guidance to report any staff Covid cases, but at this time 
CBH had not had to do this, although the process had been put in place internally.  
 
KL highlighted the following to members: 
 
Gas Servicing – 51 homes were due a service by the end of April. Of these 20 were 
outstanding; 10 of those were in the over 70’s classification and a few of the other 10 
were due to become empty. We are working with CBC compliance officers in order to 
keep Mears busy and have agreed that we will pull forward services for May to get ahead. 
 
Fire safety has continued as not too intrusive 
 
Water safety ongoing 
 
Electrical safety has been paused as requires access to every room in the house and 
there is plan in place to catch up on these within the year 
 
Asbestos – only essential tests are being carried out 
 
Lifts – Update to the report – we now have the lift contractor and insurance back servicing 
lifts 
 
PPE – We have been able to maintain a fairly good supply – we have enough for the next 
2.5-3 weeks with more on order 
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8.6 
 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.8 
 

KL advised members that the Health and Safety Strategic Policy had returned to the 
meeting following Boards request in February and included amendments detailing the 
Boards role with regards to health and safety and a link to the CBC website detailing tree 
policy. 
 
KL addressed the pre board questions that had been received: 
 
1. What recording keeping is in place evidencing the changed approach to compliance? 
In particular regarding RIDDOR and staff with Covid. 
 
CBH keep good records, we use the Assure H&S system to record everything 
electronically which includes normal RIDDOR reportable incidents and now for any Covid 
incidents.  
With regards to changes in policy decisions and any changes, we have set up a decision 
log that we run through 3 times a week to track changes and decisions and notify the 
council in writing and link in the government guidance.  
 
2. Additional properties we are using for rough sleeping, I gather a number of checks 
have been made on them – can we be assured that they are subject to the same 
processes as our other properties. 
 
We took on two new premises in Colchester; one was the old sheltered accommodation 
which was due for demolition. The health and safety measures here were in place 
anyway such as 247 out of hours system, and a fire alarm that links directly to this too.   
 
The other building, we are using is a hotel, which we have rented. Full photographic 
inventories were taken, the Fire Brigade worked with us to produce a joint health and 
safety inspection, and through the resilience we have shared the accommodation plans 
with the Police. We also have 24-hour security.  
 
DP asked that the Executive provide a continued weekly update on compliance at the 
Covid Briefings. 
 
 

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Heath and Safety Compliance Report  
ii.APPROVE the Strategic Health and Safety Policy  
 
8B 
 
8B.1 
 
 
 
8B.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance Assurance 
 
MA introduced the report and advised that the final year-end out turn figures would be 
scrutinised by the Finance and Audit Committee in June and would then come to Board in 
July.  
 
The main headlines for the Board to note were as follows 
 
At the end of Q4 there is a surplus of £58,310  
 
General Fund – budgeted for an income of £1.531 million and expenditure of £1.642 
million. We knew there would be a deficit on our general fund services, which has been 
discussed previously, as services that have come over from CBC that do not attract an 
overhead and is a gap our trading looks to plug.  
 
CBH Income was actually increased to £1.55 million through in year grant funding and 
expenditure came in at £1.698 million  
 
HRA – expected income of £8.294 million and an expenditure of £8.294 million so a 
balanced budget for the year. 
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Income was £9.78 million, and this has come from income streams such as right to buy 
back voids, grants, Project Aurora an external works. Actual expenditure was £8.873 
million  
 
MA advised members that CBH were still awaiting their pension position for year end and 
it is likely than it will come later than expected due to the current environment.  
 
MA advised that he would address questions that had been submitted prior to the Board 
meeting which were as follows:  
 
1.Has Covid-19 had an impact on Trading activity? 
There has been no financial impact due to the design team being in in design and 
planning phase; so, currently they are completing desk work and bringing in a fee. With 
regards to the Mercury theatre we will be submitting a fee variation due to impacting 
asbestos work that took place prior to Covid and any further delays that have been 
caused. 
 

The Board resolved to: 
i.NOTE the Finance Assurance Report  
 
9. 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
9.3 

Strategic Risk Register 
 
MA advised the Board that he was still in the process of formatting the new risk register 
but summarised that there had been no risk impact or increase due to Covid-19 as CBH 
had strong mitigations in place for such incidents.   
 
He advised that the new format would go to Finance and Audit Committee in June and 
then to Board in July.  
 
The Board agreed before the next F&A committee that they would like to be notified of 
any exceptions or changes to any risks at the weekly Covid briefings 
 
 

The Board resolved to: 
1.NOTE the current status of the Strategic Risk Register  
10. 
 
10.1 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.3 
 
 
 
10.4 
 
 
 
 
 
10. 

Any Other Business 
 
MC advised that he had the last Residents Panel report which he would circulate to the 
Board. 
 
CL advised that he had received notification of a recent Portfolio Holder decision 
regarding the Essential Moves Policy. GM advised that this was a decision which related 
to minor re-wording and amends of the policy to bring it in line with current working 
practices around appeals and complaints.  
KL added that at this time only essential moves were taking place and the Gateway to 
Homechoice had been suspended.  
 
DP asked if the Board could have further 121 Teams Training? JP advised that she would 
contact the IT team to arrange this.  
 
 
DP asked how staff were faring in terms of resilience and wellbeing? GM advised that 
Managers continue to check in regularly with their teams and with those that are not in 
the workplace. He added that next week they would be sending out a wellbeing survey to 
all staff and that he would share the results of this with the Board when they were 
received.  
 
DP asked for members to feedback to him directly via email regarding the meeting  
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 End of Public Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Next Meeting 
Wednesday 1st July 2020 

Rowan House 
 
 

Action Tracker 
 
 
Item Action  Who By When  Complete 
22.04.8.8 DP asked that the Executive 

provide a continued weekly 
update on compliance at the 
Covid Briefings. 
 

Executive 29.04.2020 Added to Covid 
standard agenda 

22.04.9.3 The Board agreed before the 
next F&A committee that they 
would like to be notified of any 
exceptions or changes to any 
risks at the weekly Covid 
briefings 

Executive 29.04.2020 
 

Added to Covid 
standard agenda 

22.04.10.1 Resident Panel February report 
to be circulated to the Board 

JPag 24.04.2020 Circulated with 
Board minutes 

22.04.10.3 Further Teams Training to be 
requested for Board Members 

JPag 30.04.2020 Compete 

22.04.10.4 GM to share the results of the 
Staff Survey with the Board when 
received  

GM 29.05.2020 Complete 

22.04.10.5 Board Members to email Chair 
directly with any feedback from 
the meeting  

Board  30.04.2020 Complete 

 
 



 

FINANCE AND AUDIT CHAIRS REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD   
 

Recommendations 
The Board is asked to: 
 

1) NOTE the draft minutes and matters discussed at the Finance and Audit Committee on the 
4th June 2020 

2) APPROVE the end of year accounts as considered by the Finance and Audit Committee 
3) APPROVE the annual governance statement which has not been considered by the 

Finance and Audit Committee 
4) NOTE the Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2019/20 
5) APPROVE the Risk Register format recommended by the Finance and Audit Committee 
6) APPROVE the Risk Appetite as recommended by the Finance and Audit Committee 

 
 
Executive summary 
 

This report separates the work of the Finance and Audit Committee into a stand-alone report. This 
report sets out the matters discussed at the recent Finance and Audit and Risk Committee and 
seeks approval of the Committee’s recommendations on matters requiring Board approval. 
 
1. Minutes and recommendations from the Finance and Audit Committee 

 
The Finance and Audit Committee met on 4th June 2020. The draft minutes form appendix A to 
this report. 
 
2. Approval of Year End Accounts 2019/20 
 
As part of its deliberations on the 4th June the Committee examined the end of year accounts 
2019/20 which it approved in line with delegations. The report was presented in detail by the 
external auditor Luke Morris of Scrutton Bland who then answered questions from the committee. 
 
Having considered these changes, the Committee resolved to recommend approval to the Board. 
The final End of Year Accounts form appendix B to this report 

 
3. Annual Governance Statement 
 
Local authorities are required to produce an Annual Governance Statement to report on the 
adequacy of their systems of internal control. As a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council, CBH 
follows this discipline and prepares its own Annual Governance Statement to reflect on the 
adequacy of its governance arrangements. 
 



  
 

The Directors Management Team have conducted a review of the Company’s governance 
arrangements against a template of best practice to test that the Company’s governance is sound, 
and to identify where it could be strengthened. The final section of the Annual Governance 
Statement includes an action plan to make the improvements that have been identified. Progress in 
implementing this plan will be reported to the Finance and Audit Committee during the coming year. 
 
Attached at Appendix C is the draft Annual Governance Statement. The statement has five parts 
for 2019/20: 
 

• Scope of Responsibility which sets out CBHs’ business management arrangements for 
2019/20. 

• Purpose of the governance framework which describes the high-level business management 
processes adopted by the Company. 

• Review of effectiveness which describes the Company’s arrangements for ensuring that 
these business processes operate effectively throughout the year. 

• Significant governance issues brought forward from the previous financial year which 
outlines where further action was overdue and has now been completed to strengthen the 
governance framework. 

• Significant governance issues identified which outlines where further action is required to 
strengthen the governance framework. 

 
The Board is asked to approve the Annual Governance Statement for inclusion within the 
Company’s Annual Report and Accounts. 
 
 
4. Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2019/20 
Stuart Coogan from Mazars presented the 2019/20 Head of Internal Audit report to the committee.  
The report gave substantial assurance to both the financial and non-financial systems CBH 
operate.  There was a total of 13 Audits carried out by Mazars in 2019/20 - 2 audits received Full 
Assurance, 10 received Substantial Assurance, 1 was a review so no assurance given. The final 
report form appendix D to this report. 
 
The Committee were introduced to the new Internal Auditors, TIAA who were appointed by CBC 
on the 1st April 2020 and formally by the F&A Committee on the 9th April through electronic 
decision.  Fiona Dodimead, Head of Internal Audit, talked about the assurance-based approach 
TIAA would take and the methods they use.  Example reports were shared along with a monthly 
bulletin for Board Members. 
 
5. Risk Register Format 
 
The final Risk Register format and associated risk framework were discussed and agreed at the 



  
 

meeting, the Committee requested a number of minor changes, many of these related to tidying of 
language, and the revised risk register forms appendix E to this report.  The changes can be 
highlighted as: 
 

• Risk Impact Table 
o Risk types were reduced from 7 to 5, the risk types agreed were Financial, Reputational, 

People, Compliance, Quality of Service. 
o The risk descriptors have been amended to reflect the new risk types. 
o Rather than having two heatmaps for the Financial risk type (Operations and Trading), 

the descriptors now reflect the difference in what impact a minor, significant, serious and 
major is between the two areas ie. a minor impact for an Operational loss is up to £5,000 
whereas a minor impact on a trading loss is up to £10,000. 

 
• Risk Likelihood Table 

o No change to framework. 
 

• Risk Tolerance 
o The heatmaps were amended to reflect the reduced number of risk types and following 

discussion on appetite. 
o Green = Acceptable risk;  
o Orange = Acceptable risk but requires close monitoring;  
o Red = Unacceptable risk. 

o The risk tolerance heat maps allows accurate scoring of risks and ensures the tolerance 
is within the risk appetite of the Board. 

 
 
6. Approval of Board Risk Appetite 
 
The Committee had a detailed discussion on the setting of the Board’s risk appetite and the 
discussion led to producing a simplified method of determining the risk appetite using the ‘Good 
Governance Institute’s methodology.  The appetite is based on the Board being ‘Averse’, 
‘Cautious’ or ‘Open’ and descriptors are listed against each risk type as shown below.  The red 
outlines show the proposal to Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Risk Appetite 
AVERSE CAUTIOUS OPEN 

Risk Type 
FINANCIAL 
The direct financial loss as a 
result of the event occurring for 
normal Operations and Trading. 

We have no appetite for decisions 
or actions that may result in 
financial loss. 

We are prepared to accept the possibility 
of limited financial risk. However, VFM is 
our primary concern. 

We are prepared to accept some 
financial risk as long as appropriate 
controls are in place. We have a holistic 
understanding of VFM with price not 
the overriding factor. 

        
REPUTATIONAL 
The adverse reputational damage 
to CBH due to an event occurring. 

We have no appetite for decisions 
that could lead to additional 
scrutiny or attention on the 
organisation 

We are prepared to accept the possibility 
of limited reputational risk if appropriate 
controls are in place to limit any fallout. 

We are prepared to accept the 
possibility of some reputational risk as 
long as there is the potential for 
improved outcomes for our 
stakeholders. 

        
PEOPLE 
The negative impact 
(nuisance/frustration, physical  
injury or mental health) to a 
member of staff, contractor or 
the general public.    

We have no appetite for decisions 
that could have a negative impact 
on our workforce, contractors or 
member of the public.  

We are prepared to take limited risks 
with regards to our people. Where 
attempting to innovate, we  would seek 
to understand where similar actions had 
been successful elsewhere before taking 
any decision.  

We are prepared to accept the 
possibility of some risk to our people, as 
a direct result from innovation as long 
as there is the potential for improved 
working environments and outcomes. 

        
COMPLIANCE 
A breach in statutory, regulatory 
or policy requirements.  

We have no appetite for decisions 
that may compromise compliance 
with statutory, regulatory or policy 
requirements. 

We are prepared to accept the possibility 
of limited regulatory challenge. We would 
seek to understand where similar actions 
had been successful elsewhere before 
taking any decision. 

We are prepared to accept the 
possibility of some regulatory challenge 
as long as we can be reasonably 
confident we would be able to 
challenge this successfully. 

        
QUALITY OF SERVICE 
A failure to deliver the service 
requirement and/or the agreed 
service targets.  A failure to meet 
the annual strategic delivery plan 
objective or the inability to meet 
the 3-year target. 

We have no appetite for decisions 
that may have an uncertain impact 
the quality of our service provision 
or lead to a failure to meet a 
strategic objective. 

Our preference is for risk avoidance. 
However, if necessary we will take 
decisions on quality where there is a low 
degree of inherent risk and the possibility 
of improved outcomes, and appropriate 
controls are in place. 

We are prepared to accept the 
possibility of a short-term impact on 
quality outcomes with potential for 
longer-term rewards. We support 
innovation. 

        

Notes:    
Financial - The appetite for financial loss in our day-to-day operations is 'averse', but for trading activity it’s 'open'.  
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Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Finance and Audit Committee – Thursday 4th June – 5.00pm 
Teams Meeting  
Present:   
Julie Parker Chair 
Karen Smout Vice Chair 
Cllr Nigel Chapman Member 
Cllr Cyril Liddy Member 
Paula Goddard Member 
 
In attendance: 
Matthew Armstrong Director of Business Improvement 
Jo Paget  Governance Officer  
Cong Gu Head of Finance 
Gareth Mitchell CEO 
Luke Morris Scrutton Bland 
Stuart Coogan  Mazars 
Fiona Dodimead TIAA 
 
 
1. 
 
1.1 
 

Welcome and Apologies 
 
No apologies were received and the meeting was confirmed as being quorate. 
Introductions were made to welcome Fiona Dodimead, Stuart Coogan and Luke Morris 
to the meeting  
 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on the 4th February 2020 and Matters Arising  
 
The minutes were accepted as being a true and accurate record of the meeting held on 
4th February 2020 and were approved by the Committee. 
 
Actions Update  
 
It was noted that the only action outstanding was regarding the Board Risk Workshop and 
this would be covered under the later agenda item regarding risk. 
 
KS asked whether resolution had been agreed with the Council regarding the budget for 
the pension moving forward? 
MA advised that CBH were currently still in talks with the Council and this was yet to be 
resolved and would come as part of the re-profiling budgets report to the next F&A 
Committee meeting on the 29th July.  
 

 The Committee resolved to: 
i.APPROVE the minutes of the 4th February 2020 
ii.NOTE the position on the Pension budget 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit End of Year Assurance Report - Mazars 
 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2019/20  
Stuart Coogan introduced the report and highlighted the following: 
 
The overall opinion for CBH is that of substantial assurance.  
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3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 

The opinion was divided between finance and non -finance and both were reported to be 
fundamentally sound 
SC advised that there had been no limited opinions, which had been the same as the 
previous year and whilst this ensured that CBH continued to comply with core processes 
he would suggest that CBH may wish to broaden the audit scope for 2020/21.  
 
There were no questions arising  
 
Internal Audit Progress Report  
 
Stuart Coogan introduced the report and highlighted the following: 
 
Homelessness Audit – this was finalised without management response which was with 
CBH agreement. No significant risk was identified.  
All other audit management responses were received and Mazars will be delivering a 
hand over to TIAA 
 
KS posed a question regarding petty Cash and reconciliations question and whether CBH 
still needed petty cash given that Covid would have provided chance to reconsider this?  
 
CG advised that before the 31st March she had not had the opportunity to reconcile the 
petty cash and that there were three floats of £150. She advised that these were legacy 
floats that remained in the safe and that most teams now used credit cards. The audit had 
helped CBH focus on what the petty cash was for and this has been resolved with credit 
cards and petty cash will be removed.  
 
KS posed a further question regarding creditors and changes to bank details only 
processed following appropriate notification. She advised that with the potential for 
phising fraud were the management team comfortable with internal controls in place? 
CG advised that CBH did not rely on any received emails and always talked to the bank 
via the phone on secure and verified numbers that were on internal records, via Google or 
Company House records.   
 
JP asked the management team when the Homelessness Audit management response 
would be completed. She felt that due to the importance of the service CBH would need 
to address the recommendations. MA advised that Covid did have an effect on workload 
as the audit was carried out in March when there were considerable pressures on the 
service. MA assured the Committee that actions would be followed up and he would take 
this away as an action.  
 
JP asked what the current position was on a high priority recommendation on Tenancy Fraud 
which was to be completed by 31st December 2019? 
MA advised that the Head of Housing had reviewed this recommendation which came about 
due to a 3-year funded programme for Tenancy Fraud Officers ceasing. He continued that the 
Head of Housing and Managers did conduct spot checks – but originally there were 2 officers 
carrying out more in-depth investigations. Due to potential increase in this area CBH were 
reviewing FTE resource. 
 
Recommendations Follow up Report  
 
Stuart Coogan introduced the report and highlighted the following: 
 
There had not been a high number of recommendations, with a total of 4 left outstanding 
which had been chased but no management response. These were for Corporate 
facilities  
 
These recommendations will be handed over to TIAA to ensure they are picked up and 
added to the follow up portal  
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Stuart Coogan left the meeting.  
 

The committee resolved to 
i.NOTE the Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2019/20  
ii.NOTE the Internal Audit Progress Report  
iii.NOTE the Recommendations Follow up Report  
 
4. 
 
4.1 

Final Year End Report 
 
Audit of Financial Statements Report  
 
Luke Morris introduced the report and asked the Committee to note the latest accounts 
circulated to members separate from the pack due to an amendment to the IAS 19 
pension valuation by the actuaries. 
 
LM advised that this only affected one figure within the asset valuation but it did have the 
impact of reducing the pension liability by £1.5 million which had affected the comments in 
their report and the financial statements themselves.  
 
LM advised that the year end process had gone reasonably well as a first year with out 
the usual face to face interaction. He asked the Committee to note that there had been a 
slight issue with the control recharge sheet and reconciling that properly, which he felt 
would have been easier if he had been there in person. He advised that when 
circumstances permitted the team would come into the office to go through properly but 
that in the mean-time they were able to use confirmation from CBC on year end 
management charge balances.  
 
LM continued that he expected to see a clean audit which he asked members to 
particularly note due to the exceptional circumstances of Covid. He advised that it was 
quite difficult to find an organisation that had not been impacted by the current situation.  
 
LM asked members to note the difference in the balance sheet with regards to the 
pension liability number which had been revised from 10.4 million to 8.8 million in the 
revised set of accounts. He advised that this was a large liability which had been driven 
by actuarial estimates and represented their best estimate of the current pension deficit.  
 
LM also asked members to note was the implementation of the new IFRS 16 leasing 
standard. This meant that operating leases that previously would have been recognised 
as a straight line charge in the income statement over the life of the lease was now 
recognised as right to use assets with a corresponding liability component.  
 
It was confirmed that the final accounts would be ready for presentation and signing to 
Board on the 1st July 2020. 
 
The Chair thanked both Luke and Cong and the Finance team for their hard work and for 
complying to scheduled timetables in the most exceptional of circumstances.  
 

The Committee resolved to APPROVE for recommendation to the Board: 
i.Audit of Financial Statements Report  
ii.Draft Financial Statement  
 
5. 
 
5.1 
 
5.2 
 
 
 

Internal Auditor Introduction  
 
Fiona Dodimead introduced TIAA and the services that they will provide for CBH  
 
She advised that that main focus of future audits will be around Covid, from governance 
arrangements around this, to health and safety measures, to payment controls.  
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5.3 
 
5.4 
 
 
 

She advised that TIAA had a system of global bulletins and briefing notes to bring 
subjects of interest or activities to note to the Committees attention between meetings.  
 
FD assured the committee that a full hand over would be conducted with Mazars. 
 
The Committee noted that they were pleased to welcome TIAA on board and to work with 
a new company with a fresh pair of eyes on their internal audit.  
It was also noted that the audit plan would be presented at the next Audit Committee on 
the 29th July.  
 

6. 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 

Risk Register 
 
Risk Register Final format 
 
MA introduced the register and advised that it was 80% complete, with a view to this 
being completed within 2 weeks and a final version presented to Board on the 1st July 
 
He advised that in the original risk management strategy, a Board workshop had been 
scheduled to conduct the risk appetite exercise which was not possible at this time due to 
Covid. He advised he had been in discussion with Karen Smout and they had come up 
with a proposal to share with the committee. 
 
MA took the Committee through the new risk format and asked if there were any 
questions.  
 
JP asked if it was possible to have a summary sheet which would show the mitigated 
score and the target score as this allowed the committee to see the level of ambition. She 
advised that if there was a big gap the committee would be able to identify if there was a 
resource, financial or timing implication and whether the aspiration could be achieved.  
 
MA presented the risk appetite proposal to the Committee 
 
The Committee agreed the proposed Likelihood descriptors 
 
Impact descriptors – It was agreed that there may be currently too many descriptors and 
these should be reviewed. It was suggested that the following was used – Financial, 
Quality, People, Regulatory and Reputational. JPag suggested that MA review the RSH 
Risk Sector profile for national trends and focus in the sector. MA advised the Committee 
he would make the appropriate changes and re-circulate to the committee for their 
approval.  
 
Appetite indicators – It was suggested that words were used to describe the appetite to 
accompany the heat maps – it was suggested that MA incorporate descriptors such as 
Averse, Cautious and Open  
 
The Committee agreed they were happy to trial the model and recommend to Board and 
would await MA to circulate the final draft.  
 

 The Committee resolved to APPROVE for recommendation to the Board: 
i.Final Risk Register Format 
ii.Risk Appetite  
 

7. AOB 
 
MA advised that Sarah Johnson, Finance Manager had left the company, however she 
has been kept on a causal contract to help through year end. Her post has been backfilled 
on an interim basis and a job advert was now out to replace resource in the team.  
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MA advised the committee that there had been costs associated with Covid so when the 
reprofiled budgets were presented at the next F&A meeting in July, there could be a 
request to cover those costs through reserves This included items such as PPE 
equipment and IT equipment for staff working at home. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

F&A Committee Action List  
4th February 2020    
Action   Who By When  Completed 
2.2 Pension 
Budget – to be 
presented as part 
of the re-profiling 
budgets report to 
the next F&A 
Committee 
meeting on the 29th 
July.  
 

MA 29th July 2020 . 

3.2 Homeless 
Audit - MA assured 
the Committee that 
actions would be 
followed up and he 
would take this 
away as an action. 

MA To Update 
Committee on the 
29th July 2020 

 
 

5.4 - Audit plan to  
be presented at 
the next Audit 
Committee on the 
29th July.  
 

FD 29th July 2020  

6.3 Final Risk 
Appetite to be 
circulated to F&A 
prior to the Board 
meeting on the 1st 
July  

MA Before the 24th 
June  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 6 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
 
 

REPORT TO THE BOARD 
 

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
 

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

DRAFT



 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 

Contents 
 
 
 
1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 1 

 
2 The Financial Statements .............................................................................................. 1 

 
3 Main Areas of Audit Risk ................................................................................................ 4 

 
4 Controls ......................................................................................................................... 5 

 
5 Taxation ........................................................................................................................ 5 

 
6 Independence ................................................................................................................ 6 

 
 
 

Appendices 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 1 

Adjustments to the Financial Statements ...................................................................... 7 

 
Appendix 2 

Letter of Representation ................................................................................................ 8 

 
Appendix 3 

Management Letter...................................................................................................... 12 

 
  

DRAFT



 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________ 

1 
 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 In accordance with International Standard on Auditing 260 (“Communication with 

those charged with governance) we are setting out various matters relating to our 
audit of the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes (“the Company”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2020.  

 
1.2 We can confirm that we have significantly completed our audit work, subject only to 

the finalisation of our work in respect of events since the balance sheet date, receipt 
of a signed letter of confirmation from Colchester Borough Council regarding year 
end balances and their ongoing support, and the receipt of a signed letter of 
representations. The Covid-19 situation has meant that the audit has been 
undertaken remotely, and as a result full access to all information that would 
normally be available on site has not been possible. Alternative procedures have 
been undertaken where necessary such that we are able to provide an audit opinion 
on the financial statements. We currently anticipate being able to give an 
unqualified opinion on these financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. This is of course on the assumption that 
the scheme Actuary does not make any subsequent material adjustments to the 
pension deficit valuation prior to the financial statements being finalised that are 
not then included within the financial statements.  

2 The Financial Statements 
 
 The financial statements can be summarised as follows:  
 
2.1 Income and expenditure account 
 

 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
 £      £      
   
Turnover 16,891,636 14,299,576
   
Staff costs (6,961,162) (6,747,569)
Other operating charges (9,787,002) (7,786,371) 
 ________ ________ 
 143,472 (234,364)
Interest income 10,308 10,368 
 _______ _______ 
Operating surplus/(deficit) before taxation 153,780 (223,996)
   
Tax on ordinary activities - -
 _______ _______ 
Operating surplus/(deficit) after taxation 153,780 (223,996) 
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Defined benefit pension scheme charges: 

  

    Staff costs adjustment (1,573,000) (1,399,000)
    Interest costs (198,000) (210,000) 
 _______ _______ 
Deficit after defined benefit pension charges 
per financial statements                                £ (1,617,220) £ (1,832,996) 

 
 
2.2 The income and expenditure account has been presented in the above format in this 

report in order to show the results before and after adjustments under IAS 19 in 
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. The results before the IAS 19 defined 
benefit pension scheme adjustments are the results that management are able to 
influence and control. The IAS 19 defined benefit pension scheme adjustments are 
only known after the end of the financial year and are determined by the actuary of 
the Essex County Council Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) 

 
2.3 The income and expenditure account of the Company can be considered to have 

three discrete components:  
 

• There are the costs of the direct labour work force and costs of materials which 
are invoiced at cost to Colchester Borough Council: therefore these transactions 
produce neither a surplus nor a deficit;  

 
• There are then the various overheads costs of the Company which are funded, in 

accordance with a budget, by a management fee from Colchester Borough 
Council. To the extent that the actual costs are greater than or less than the 
management fee, the Company records either a deficit or a surplus.  

 
• Finally, commercial activities such as the management of properties for external 

organisations. 
 
2.4 We do not consider that the surplus made by the Company in respect of the ALMO 

activity with Colchester Borough Council to be taxable. Any other surpluses made 
will be subject to corporation tax. Our work in respect of taxation is set out in 
Section 5.  
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2.5 Balance sheet 
 

 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 
 £     £     
   
Net assets 1,257,300 1,205,155
   
Less: Provisions (229,861) (193,195) 
 _______ _______
Net assets before defined benefit pension 
scheme adjustments 

1,027,439 1,011,960 

 
Net pension liability (10,405,000) (8,665,000) 
 ________ ________
Net liabilities including defined benefit 
pension scheme adjustments 

 
£ (9,377,561) 

 
£ (7,653,040) 

 
2.6 The balance sheet of the Company shows net liabilities of £9,377,561 compared to 

£7,653,040 in the previous year.  
 
2.7 We consider that the more meaningful figure to take into consideration when 

assessing the financial stability of the company, and its ability to meet its liabilities 
as they fall due, is the net asset position before taking into account the defined 
benefit pension scheme deficit.  The surplus of the company’s current assets over its 
current liabilities, after adding back provisions, is closer than other figures on the 
balance sheet to a cash flow measure. This position, together with the knowledge 
that the Company generally forecasts to breakeven, and that the management fee is 
received on a profiled basis from Colchester Borough Council, is indicative of the 
robustness of the balance sheet.  

 
2.8 The large liability of £10,405,000 (2019: £8,665,000) in respect of pension 

obligations is not an immediate liability to be met from cash flows: it represents the 
current best estimate of the pension deficit for those Company employees in the 
LGPS. The expectation is that future budgets presented to Colchester Borough 
Council will include the appropriate amounts in respect of future employer 
contributions and that these contributions will be then be funded by the 
management fee.  

 
2.9 Under IFRS there is a requirement for the pension surplus or deficit to be shown on 

the face of the balance sheet. As noted above, there is also a requirement for the 
income and expenditure account to be amended in order to show pension costs 
based on the current costs accruing, rather than on the basis of the employer 
contributions payable to the scheme. 
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2.10 The net movements in the pension scheme liability are set out in Appendix 1. The 

liability has increased from £8,665,000 to £10,405,000, being an increase of 
£1,740,000. The item having the biggest impact upon the increase in the scheme 
liability is the fall in the fair value of fund assets from £33,303,000 at 1 April 2019 to 
£30,704,000 at 31 March 2020. 

 
2.11 The standard on lease reporting, IFRS 16, is effective for accounting periods 

commencing on or after 1 January 2019, and its adoption was therefore mandatory 
this year. As noted in our audit plan, there were two options available when 
accounting for the transition to reporting under this standard. In preparing the 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the “alternative transition” 
approach has been used. As a result, the opening equity position has been adjusted 
rather than restating the comparative figures for 31 March 2019. The adoption of 
IFRS 16 has resulted in the opening reserves position being reduced by £138,301. 
This is effectively a timing difference between the way in which lease costs are now 
accounted for. 

 
2.12 Prior to IFRS 16, operating lease rental costs were charged to the income and 

expenditure account on what was effectively a straight-line basis in accordance with 
the rental charge for the year. Under IFRS 16 operating leases are largely brought 
onto the balance sheet whereby a liability and corresponding fixed asset are 
recognised based upon the discounted value of expected lease payments. This has 
resulted in right of use fixed assets totalling £1,069,940 being brought onto the 
opening balance sheet together with related lease liabilities of £1,208,241. 

 
2.13 The straight-line operating lease charge is now replaced with a depreciation charge, 

together with an interest charge that is released to the income and expenditure 
account as the lease unwinds. This results in a timing difference in respect of the 
cost now being recognised through the income and expenditure account year to 
year, although the overall net impact upon the income and expenditure reserve for 
the life of the lease is the same as would have been the case prior to implementing 
IFRS 16. The difference between the two basis on the results reported for the year to 
31 March 2020 is negligible this year at £5,862. 

3 Main Areas of Audit Risk 
 
3.1 There is always a concern that certain material or subcontractors’ costs incurred by 

the Company may not be accepted by Colchester Borough Council. The Company 
makes no margin on the recharge of such materials and there is therefore no surplus 
available to absorb costs in such a situation. We have obtained confirmation from 
the management of the Company that there have been no such cases; we are able to 
confirm this by reviewing the recharges made to Colchester Borough Council and the 
accounting evidence that all costs have been recharged and not challenged to date.  
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3.2 There is an audit risk that late costs may be incurred in relation to overheads of the 

Company. We therefore carry out a review of purchase invoices and payments after 
the end of the year in order to identify any such costs. We also seek to agree larger 
supplier balances on the bought ledger to statements from those suppliers.  

 
3.3 There is a significant audit risk that the information in respect of the defined benefit 

pension scheme accounting requirements under IFRS may be presented incorrectly 
or may be based on inappropriate assumptions. We therefore review the detailed 
figures provided by the Actuary, including the assumptions, and carry out detailed 
reviews of the information provided in the financial statements with regard to the 
net pension liability and the pension costs. The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 
will continue to impact upon asset values (including stock market valuations) and 
discount rates, both of which will have an ongoing impact upon the pension scheme. 

 
3.4 Covid-19 presents a significant risk for the economy, and the financial impact upon 

many businesses is likely to be catastrophic. We understand that Colchester Borough 
Council will be providing ongoing support to the company such that its going 
concern status is not in doubt, and written confirmation of this will be obtained 
prior to signing the audit report. 

4 Controls 
 
4.1 During our audit we examined certain control procedures operated by the 

management team. We also reviewed the various reports issued by Mazars, the 
internal audit service to the Company. We note that full or substantial assurance has 
been given on all reports. 

5 Taxation  
 
5.1 We are responsible for the corporation tax compliance work for the Company.  
 
5.2 It is our opinion that the nature of the surpluses made by the Company (comprising 

the making of savings on a management fee awarded by the sole member of the 
Company) is such that they are not subject to corporation tax as they do not 
represent surpluses from a taxable undertaking.   

 
5.3 During the year the Company has engaged in a number of trading activities, and as 

such any surplus in this area is subject to Corporation Tax.  
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6 Independence 
 
6.1 We can confirm that we consider the partners and employees of Scrutton Bland LLP 

and Scrutton Bland Limited to be independent of both the Company and also 
Colchester Borough Council.  

 
6.2 In addition to the audit services, we provide tax compliance services to the 

Company. The fee in respect of these tax compliance services is very much less than 
our audit fee; we therefore do not consider that our undertaking this extra service 
impacts on our independence from the Company.  

 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
 
22 May 2020 
 
  

DRAFT



 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________ 

7 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Charge Adjustment 
 
 
 Balance Sheet I & E 
  Dr Cr  Dr Cr 
    
    
IAS 19 interest adjustment  198,000 

Employer service costs  1,573,000 

IAS 19 interest adjustment 198,000   

Employer service costs  1,573,000   

Balance brought forward 8,665,000   

Actuarial gain 31,000   

Balance carried forward  10,405,000   

Adjustment to reserves  1,771,000   

  10,436,000 12,207,000  1,771,000 0
  

Effect on pension reserve  (1,771,000) 

  

Effect on deficit:   

- Pension charge   (1,771,000) 

Deficit after tax per CBH draft   153,780 

Deficit after tax per accounts   (1,617,220) 
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Appendix 2 
Letter of Representation 

 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 

1st Floor 
Rowan House 

33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
CO3 3WG 

Company Number: 04843624 
A company incorporated in England and Wales 

 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
and Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 
 
Dear Sirs 
 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience and where appropriate, of 
inspection of supporting documentation, sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly 
make each of the following representations to you in connection with your audit of the 
company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as 
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.  
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are 
aware of that information. 
 
Financial Statements: 
 
1. We acknowledge, and have fulfilled, as directors, our collective responsibility under 

the Companies Act 2006 for presenting financial statements (in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards), which give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the company at the reporting date, and 
of its result for the period then ended, and for making accurate representations to 
you.  We confirm that we have approved the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2020. 
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2. We confirm that the accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted for the 
preparation of the financial statements are the most appropriate to the 
circumstances in which the company operates. 
 

3. Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the company has not entered 
into any transactions involving directors, officers or other related parties, which 
require disclosure under the Companies Act or International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Appropriate disclosure has been made of the control of the company. 

 
4. We have disclosed all known or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 

be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards. 

 
5. The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the going concern 

basis as we believe that adequate cash resources will be available to cover the 
company’s requirements for working capital and capital expenditure for at least the 
next twelve months. The company is well placed to deal with any potential financial 
impact of the Covid-19 outbreak and has the support of Colchester Borough Council. 
We are not aware of any other factors which could put into jeopardy the company’s 
going concern status during or beyond this period, other than as disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

 
6. There have been no events since the reporting date which necessitate revision of the 

figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto.  Should 
further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included 
in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you 
accordingly. 

 
7. We confirm that we have been notified by you that either no unadjusted or only 

clearly trivial errors were identified during the audit. 
 
8. We confirm that we have agreed the adjustments appended to this letter which have 

been made to the Trial Balance which we presented to you for audit. 
 
9. We confirm we have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying 

value or classification of any assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 
10. With regard to the defined benefit pension plan, we are satisfied that: 
 

 the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation are consistent with our 
knowledge of the plan and our business; 

 all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly 
accounted for; and 

 all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted 
for. 
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Information provided: 
 
11. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the company have been properly 
reflected and recorded in the accounting records.  We have provided to you all other 
information requested and given unrestricted access to persons within the entity to 
whom you have deemed it necessary to speak. All other records and relevant 
information, including minutes of all management and shareholders’ meetings, have 
been made available to you. 

 
12. Other than those disclosed in the financial statements we are not aware of any 

material liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets or contracted 
for capital commitments, that need to be provided for or disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

 
13. We confirm that we have notified you of all related party relationships, and 

transactions that the company has entered into with those related parties during the 
year of which we are aware. 
 

14. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
controls to prevent and detect errors or fraud, and have disclosed to you the results 
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. We are unaware of any irregularities, including fraud 
and suspected fraud, involving management, employees or others who have 
significant roles in internal control, or those employed by the company where the 
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  No allegations of 
such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
15. We are unaware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, 

contracts, agreements or the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association 
which might result in the company suffering significant penalties or other loss.  No 
allegations of such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
16. We confirm that we have been notified by you that there are no matters which you 

are required to raise with us to comply with your profession’s ethical guidance which 
are in addition to the matters included in your external audit plan. 

 
17. We confirm receipt of your external audit plan and we confirm receipt of your 

management letter. 
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18. We confirm that only one director received remuneration during the year and that 

the remuneration of this director, excluding benefits in kind, was £110,887 in the 
period. 

 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Executive 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Date: 
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Appendix 3 

Management Letter 
 
The Directors 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
CO3 3WG 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Following our recent final audit in connection with the financial statements of Colchester 
Borough Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020, we are writing to bring to your 
attention certain matters that arose during the course of our work, together with 
suggestions for improvements of procedures operated by the company. We hope that you 
will find our comments helpful and constructive. 
 
Our work during the audit included an examination of some of the company’s transactions 
and procedures with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements for the 
year. This work was not directed primarily towards discovering weaknesses or towards the 
detection of fraud. We have only considered matters that have come to our attention as a 
result of our normal audit procedures and consequently our comments should not be 
regarded as a comprehensive record of all weaknesses that may exist or of all improvements 
that might be made. 
 
Our work also included a review of the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements 
and consideration of the appropriateness of the accounting policies and estimation 
techniques adopted by the company. This review identified no significant matters which we 
believe are necessary to draw to your attention. 
 
We would particularly draw your attention to the following matters: 
 
Going Concern - Pension liability 
 
The balance sheet includes a large provision of £10,405,000 in respect of the IAS 19 defined 
benefit pension fund deficit. The inclusion of this provision means that there is a deficit of 
member’s funds of £9,377,561. If the future performance of the pension scheme remains 
identical to the assumptions made by the Actuary, then there would need to be an increase 
in total contributions into the pension scheme in order to cover the funding shortfall. The 
financial impact of Covid-19 could potentially have a long term affect upon the value of 
assets held within the scheme, exacerbating this position. 
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We consider that the financial statements should continue to be prepared on the going 
concern basis, provided that the directors are of the view that increased pension 
contributions in future years will be met by the funding received each year from Colchester 
Borough Council. 
 
Conclusion 
 
If you require any further information or assistance, we shall be very pleased to help you. 
 
We would appreciate an acknowledgement of the receipt of this letter and look forward to 
receiving your comments when you have had the opportunity of considering the matter that 
we have raised. 
 
This letter is for private use only. It has been prepared on the understanding that it will not 
be disclosed to any third party, or quoted to or referred to, without our prior written consent 
and we assume no responsibility to any other party. 
  
We should like to take this opportunity of thanking you and your staff for the assistance and 
co-operation we have received during the course of our work. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their strategic report for the year ended 
31 March 2020. 
 
Principal activities and business review 
The principal activity of the Company during the period was the repair and improvement of 
council properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears, and other property 
management associated services. 
 
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the 
‘Council’) continued throughout the year. 
 
Results 
The surplus after tax, but before defined benefit pension scheme adjustments for the year 
was £153,780 (2019 : deficit of £223,996). This resulted in a deficit of £1,617,220 (2019 : 
£1,832,996) for the year, after adjustments for the defined benefit pension scheme. 
 
Included in the deficit for the year were some planned investments from reserves in 
developing a SharePoint environment for the Company’s files and data, IT training for staff 
and a Board effectiveness review. The Company also invested in staff resource to prepare 
for compliance with the new General Data Protection Regulations.  
 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The directors consider that the main risks to the Company are that expenditure is not 
controlled in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’.  The Company has 
budgeting and management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks and 
is developing a plan to ensure that its cost base is brought in-line with the core funding. The 
company is also exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in order to 
fund the deficit in the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by improved 
investment performance. 
 
The Company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and 
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main 
key performance indicators include the cost of housing management, the cost of repairs, 
tenant satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length of time taken to re-let empty 
properties and customer satisfaction with repairs. 
 
The Company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other 
financial instruments for treasury management. The company therefore has very little 
exposure to cash flow risk. 
 
The Company is following government policy changes signalled by the Social Housing Green 
Paper 2018, particularly in respect of tighter regulation around consumer standards, decent 
homes standards and building safety, which may have cost implications to implement fully. 
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The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex Mr D Paterson    
CO3 3WG Director 
  
 
 
Approved by the directors on   
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The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2020. 
 
Matters covered in the strategic report 
Financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in the strategic report. 
 
Directors 
The directors who served the Company during the year were as follows: 
 
Mr M Campbell   
Cllr N Chapman  
Cllr P Coleman (resigned 1 May 2019)      
Mr G Foster (resigned 24 October 2019) 
Ms P L Goddard (appointed 24 October 2019)   
Ms A Grahamslaw (resigned 9 September 2019)    
Mr G Houchell (resigned 24 October 2019) 
Cllr C Liddy  
Mr G Mitchell   
Miss J Parker 
Mr D Paterson (appointed 10 September 2019) 
Mrs L Preece (appointed 24 October 2019) 
Cllr L Scott-Boutell (appointed 5 June 2019) 
Ms K Smout (appointed 25 October 2019) 
 
Directors' responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union 
and applicable law. 
 
International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each 
financial year the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This 
requires faithful representation of the effect of transactions, other events and conditions in 
accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses set out on the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the 
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements'. In virtually all situations, a fair 
presentation will be achieved by complying with all applicable IFRSs.  Under company law 
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of 
the company for that period. 
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Directors' responsibilities (continued) 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are also required to: 
 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

• state whether applicable IFRS’s as adopted by the European Union have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and 
 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the company will continue in business. 

 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company website.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
 
In so far as the directors are aware: 
 

• there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware;  and 
 

• the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directors to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
company’s auditor is aware of that information. 

 
The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO3 3WG Mr D Paterson 
 Director 
 
Approved by the directors on 
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Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Income and expenditure account, the Statement 
of comprehensive income, the Statement of financial position, the Statement of changes in 
equity, the Statement of cash flow, and the Notes to the financial statements. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and 

of its loss for the year then ended; and 
 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 

Union; and 
 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs 
(UK) require us to report to you where: 
 
• The directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements is not appropriate; or  
 
• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 

uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
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Other information  
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the 
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given 
in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the strategic report 
and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
strategic report or the directors’ report. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have 

not been received from branches not visited by us; or 
 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 

or 
 
• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 
Responsibilities of directors  
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out in the Directors’ 
Report the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for 
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Responsibilities of directors (continued) 
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located                        
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Company’s member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Company’s member those matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s 
member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
Mr Luke Morris (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of: 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO4 9YQ 
 
 
Date:  
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                                                                                                 Note       2020       2019 
          £           £ 
 
Revenue 

 
    3 16,891,636 14,299,576 

   
Employee costs    5 

 

  
 

(6,961,162) (6,747,569) 
Defined benefit pension staff cost adjustment 5/14f   

 

(1,573,000) (1,399,000) 
Other operating charges    

 

(9,787,002) (7,786,371) 
 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Operating deficit  4  
 

(1,429,528) (1,633,364) 
   
 Interest receivable 10,308 10,368 
 Defined benefit pension interest adjustment  14f 

 

(198,000) (210,000) 
  -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

 Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation    (1,617,220) (1,832,996) 
    
 Income tax expense    - - 
 ------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------ 

 Deficit for the financial year (1,617,220) (1,832,996) 
 ================================================ ================================================= 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The deficit for the financial year before and after adjustments 
required under IAS 19 in respect of defined benefit pension  
schemes is as follows: 
  
Operating surplus/(deficit) after tax 153,780 (223,996) 
   
Defined benefit pension scheme charges:                                           
 Staff costs adjustment (1,573,000) (1,399,000) 
 Interest costs (198,000) (210,000) 
 ----------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit for the financial year (1,617,220) (1,832,996) 
 ===================================================== =================================================== 

 
 

All of the activities of the Company are classed as continuing.
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Note        2020       2019 

           £          £ 
 
Deficit for the financial year 

 
   (1,617,220) (1,832,996) 

   
Actuarial gains arising from pension liabilities  14b 

 

  
 

2,571,000 228,000 
    
Difference between expected and actual return on pension 
fund assets and other actuarial losses   14b   

 

(2,540,000) 1,084,000 
 ------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------ 

Total recognised deficit for the year (1,586,220) (520,996) 
 ================================================ ================================================= 

 
  

DRAFT



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

The notes on pages 14 to 30 form part of these financial statements. 
 
 

  
- 11 - 

 
   
 

Defined 
benefit 
pension   
scheme      
reserve 

Income and 
expenditure 

account 
excluding 
pension    
reserve        Total  

            £             £            £ 
 
Balance at 1 April 2018 (8,368,000) 1,235,956 (7,132,044) 
    
Deficit for the financial year (1,609,000) (223,996) (1,832,996) 
    
Other comprehensive income for the year 1,312,000 - 1,312,000 
 ------------------------------------------------------ -------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Balance at 31 March 2019 (8,665,000) 1,011,960 (7,653,040) 
 

   
Adjustment from the adoption of IFRS 16 - (138,301) (138,301) 
    
Surplus for the financial year (1,771,000) 153,780 (1,617,220) 
    
Other comprehensive income for the year 31,000 - 31,000 
 --------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Balance at 31 March 2020 (10,405,000) 1,027,439 (9,377,561) 
 =============================================== ============================================== ============================================== 
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Note 

   31 March 
       2020 

   31 March 
       2019 

Assets                                                                                                     £           £  
Non-current assets   

 Property, plant and equipment   6 823,070 - 
   

Current assets   

 Trade and other receivables   7 2,807,946 1,537,604 
 Cash and cash equivalents   8 1,458,549 1,363,057 
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 4,266,495 2,900,661 
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 Total assets 5,089,565 2,900,661 
 ================================================== ================================================ 

   
Equity   
 Reserves   

Defined benefit pension scheme reserve  (10,405,000) (8,665,000) 
Income and expenditure account –  
excluding defined benefit pension scheme reserve            9    1,027,439 1,011,960 
 ------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 

 Total equity  (9,377,561) (7,653,040) 
    
 Non-current liabilities    

 

   
 Defined benefit pension fund liability    14a 10,405,000 8,665,000 

Lease liabilities – long term  691,501 - 
  ------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 
      11,096,501 8,665,000 
  Current liabilities   
 Trade and other payables  10 2,876,756 1,695,506 
    Provisions  11 229,861 193,195 

Lease liabilities – short term  264,008 - 
 --------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

 Total current liabilities 3,370,625 1,888,701 
 ================================================== ==================================================== 

   

 Total liabilities 14,467,126 10,553,701 
 ------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------- 

 Total equity and liabilities 5,089,565 2,900,661 
 ====================================================== ========================--------------------============================ 

      
 
 

Authorised by the Board on                 and signed on its behalf by 
    

......................................  
Mr D Paterson 
Director  
 

Company registration number: 04843624 
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       2020               2019 
          £           £ 
Cash flows from operating activities   

Deficit for the financial year (1,617,220) (1,832,996) 
   
Adjustments to reconcile deficit from operations   

Interest receivable (10,308) (10,368) 
 ------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------ 

 (10,308) (10,368) 
   
Non-cash adjustments   

Depreciation 246,870 - 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 36,666 (2,505) 
Defined benefit scheme pension adjustment 1,771,000 1,609,000 

 ---------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------- 

 2,054,536 1,606,495 
   

Cash flows before changes in working capital 427,008 (236,869) 
   
Increase in working capital   

(Increase) in trade and other receivables (1,270,342) (733,679) 
Increase in trade and other payables 1,181,250 553,952 

 --------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------- 

 (89,092) (179,727) 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 

Net cash flows from operating activities 337,916 (416,596) 
   
Cash flows from investing activities   

Interest received 10,308 10,368 
 ------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------ 

Net cash flows from investing activities 10,308 10,368 
 ------------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------- 

Cash flows from financing activities   
Repayment of leasing liabilities (252,732) - 

 ------------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------- 
Net cash flows used in financing activities (252,732) - 
 ------------------------------------------ ---------------------------------------- 
   
 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 95,492 (406,228) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,363,057 1,769,285 
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,458,549 1,363,057 
 ================================================= ================================================ 
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1. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF 
COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS'S 

 
The Company's financial statements for the year were authorised for issue on                        
2020 and the statement of financial position signed on the board's behalf by D 
Paterson. Colchester Borough Homes Limited is a private company limited by 
guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered number is 04843624.  
The registered office is Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 
3WG. 
 
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out in note 2.  
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of accounting 
 
The financial statements are presented in sterling, are rounded to the nearest £1 and 
have been prepared under the historical cost basis. Sterling is also considered to be 
the functional currency of the Company. 
 
Going concern 
 
The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of £1,027,439 (2019 
: £1,011,960) but net liabilities of £9,377,561 (2019 : £7,653,040) once the provision for 
pension liabilities is included. The financial statements have been prepared on the 
basis of a going concern, on the assumption that the core funding from the Council in 
future years will enable the increased pension contributions to be met. 
 

   In accordance with government directives issued on 23 March 2020 the business is 
currently substantially closed as a result of restrictions imposed on business activities 
and social distancing relating to the spread of coronavirus. The impact of the 
coronavirus will have a very significant effect on the economy and the business during 
2020. The directors have prepared revised cashflow forecasts which anticipate that the 
company will be able to continue to meet it’s liabilities as they fall due and the directors 
are satisfied that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future, and for a period of at least 12 months from the 
date of approving these financial statements.  For this reason the directors adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the accounts.  

 
Revenue 
 
Revenue principally comprises of income derived from the Council and is stated 
exclusive of Value Added Tax. 
  
Income received from the Council is for the management of Colchester Borough 
Homes and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs 
are also recharged direct to the Council in respect of additional property services work 
outside the management fee. 
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits 
 

The Company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Essex County Council, where benefits are currently provided based on career average 
revalued earnings. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the 
Company. 
 
There are no minimum funding requirements but the contributions are generally set to 
target a funding level of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions. On the 
Employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the 
termination contribution due by the Employer, on a set of assumptions deemed 
appropriate by the Fund Actuary. 
 
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Company 
is exposed to a number of risks:  

 
• Investment risk - The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, 

which have volatile market values and while these assets are expected to 
provide real returns over the long-term, the short-term volatility can cause 
additional funding to be required if a deficit emerges;  
 

• Interest rate risk - The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on 
high quality corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows. As the Fund 
holds assets such as equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not 
move in the same way;  

 
• Inflation risk - All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so 

deficits may emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation; and 
 

• Longevity risk - In the event that the members live longer than assumed a 
deficit will emerge in the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.  

 
In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Essex Pension Fund, there 
is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets to 
cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining 
employers.  
 
All of the risks above may also benefit the Company e.g. higher than expected 
investment returns or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually 
get inherited by the remaining employers. 

 
Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit 
method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate. 

 
Pension scheme assets are valued at fair value at the reporting date. 
 
The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the statement of financial position. 
There are no deferred tax implications.
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
 
The depreciation basis for right-of-use assets is disclosed in the leased assets 
accounting policy on page 17.  
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The Company’s bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the 
‘Council’.  Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and 
placed on overnight deposit. 

 
Financial instruments 
 
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. 
 
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price.  
 
Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end 
of each reporting period for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of 
impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position when there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
Provisions 
 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation that arises as a 
consequence of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle that obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated. The 
provisions are measured as the estimated expenditure that will be required to settle 
such obligations as at the date of the statement of financial position. 

 
A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the Company’s 
offices at the end of the lease. 

 
The Company recognises a provision for the annual leave accrued by employees as a 
result of services rendered in the current period, and which employers are entitled to 
carry forward.  The provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of 
absence. 
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Leased assets 
 
For any new contracts entered into the company considers whether a contract is, or 
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys 
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration’. To apply this definition the company assesses whether the contract 
meets three key evaluations which are whether:  
 

• the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in 
the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is 
made available to the company  

 
• the company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits 

from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its 
rights within the defined scope of the contract  

 
• the company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout 

the period of use.  
 

The company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ 
the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

 
At lease commencement date, the company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs 
incurred by the company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset 
at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease 
commencement date (net of any incentives received).  

 
The company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the 
lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use 
asset or the end of the lease term. The company also assesses the right-of-use asset 
for impairment when such indicators exist.  

 
At the commencement date, the company measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the company’s incremental 
borrowing rate.  
 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of 
fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or 
rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments 
arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.  
 
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and 
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or 
if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is 
remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or 
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.  
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Leased assets (continued) 
 
The company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and 
lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit 
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. On the statement of financial 
position, right-of-use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment and 
lease liabilities have been included in trade and other payables. 

 
Current and deferred taxation 
 
Any operating profit of the Company, before IAS 19 defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments, arising from savings of overhead costs compared to the core funding 
provided by the ‘Council’, is non-taxable.  Taxation is chargeable only on the profit from 
its activities with other housing organisations. 

 
Standards that have been issued but not yet effective 

 
The below accounting standards have been issued but are not yet effective. The initial 
application of these standards is not expected to affect the financial statements. 
   

•  IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Amendments regarding pre-
replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective for periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2020). 
 

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Amendments regarding pre-replacement 
issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective for periods commencing on 
or after 1 January 2020). 

 
• IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements – Amendments regarding the 

definition of material (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 
2020). 

 
• IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – 

Amendments regarding the definition of material (effective for periods on or  
after 1 January 2020). 
 

• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Amendments 
regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective 
for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020). 
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2.       ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Impact of new accounting standards  
 
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ along with three Interpretations (IFRS 4 
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15 ‘Operating Leases-
Incentives’ and SIC 27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal 
Form of a Lease’). 

 
The adoption of this Standard has resulted in the company recognising a right-of-use 
asset and related lease liability in connection with all former operating leases except 
for those identified as low value or having a remaining lease term of less than 12 
months from the date of initial application. 
 
The new Standard has been applied using the modified retrospective approach, with 
the cumulative effect of IFRS 16 being recognised in equity as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings for the current period. Prior periods have not 
been restated.  

 
On transition to IFRS 16 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to 
lease liabilities recognised under IFRS 16 was 2.89%. 

 
The following is a reconciliation of the financial statements line items from IAS 17 to 
IFRS 16 at 1 March 2019: 
  
 Carrying 

amount at 31 
March 2019 

Reclassification Remeasurement IFRS 16 
carrying 
amount at 1 
April 2019 

Property 
plant and 
equipment 

 
- 

 

 
    1,069,940 

 
    - 

 

 
1,069,940 

 
The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019 
(as disclosed in the financial statements to 31 March 2019) to the lease liabilities 
recognised at 1 April 2019: 

 
Total operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 March 2019 1,359,839 

Recognition exemptions – leases of low value assets - 

Recognition exemptions – leases with remaining lease term of less 
   than 12 months 

- 

Discounted using incremental borrowing rate (151,598) 

Total lease liabilities recognised under IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 1,208,241 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty 

 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company’s directors to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a 
significant risk of causing material misstatement to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are those made in respect of the defined benefit 
pension scheme. 

 
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected 
to increase, changes in retirement rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. 
An independent firm of consulting actuaries has been engaged to provide expert 
advice regarding the assumptions to be applied in the calculation of the defined 
pension scheme liability, which at 31 March 2020 amounts to £10,405,000. Further 
details of the assumptions made are disclosed in note 14. 

 
3. REVENUE 
 

The revenue and loss before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the 
Company. 
 
All revenue arose in the United Kingdom. 
 
An analysis of revenue by class of business is given below: 

 
        2020       2019 

           £          £ 
   
Rendering of services 16,891,636 14,229,576 

 ======================================================= ============================================================ 

 
 
4. OPERATING DEFICIT 
 

The operating deficit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2020 2019 
 £ £ 

Included in administrative expenses: 
 
Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financial statements 14,400 14,850 

 ====================================== ====================================== 
   

   
Operating lease expenses - 361,840 

 ======================================= ====================================== 

   
Internal audit   
Internal audit relates to services provided by Mazars LLP  23,219 29,100 

 =======================================                        ====================================== 
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5. EMPLOYEE COSTS 
  

 
The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows: 
 

 2020 2019 
   No. No. 
   

Housing 91 90 
Property services 72 76 
Resources 34 31 
Senior management 10 12 
Design team 4 - 

 ------------------ ------------------ 

 212 209 
 ================== ================ 

  
 The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was: 
 

 2020 2019 
 £ £ 
   
Directors’ emoluments 110,887 108,712 
Employer pension contributions to defined 
contribution plans 17,004 16,691 

 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

 127,891 125,403 
 ====================================== =========================================== 

        2020         2019 
           £           £ 

 
Wages and salaries 5,548,674 5,381,962 
Employer pension contributions 880,264 850,566 
Social security costs 532,224 515,041 

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Total employee costs 6,961,162 6,747,569 
   

   
Additional employee related costs: 
Redundancy payments 103,379 50,682 
Agency costs 327,872 367,387 
Other staff costs 189,007 144,755 
Recruitment 25,208 9,053 
Training and seminars 72,638 142,073 

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 7,679,266 7,461,519 
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 
   

   
IAS 19 defined benefit pension cost adjustment 1,573,000 1,399,000 

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 9,252,266 8,860,519 
 ================================================= =============================================== 
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5. EMPLOYEE COSTS (continued) 
  

 In the year, the number of directors receiving remuneration was 3 (2019: 2). 
 
In the year, the number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accruing in   
respect of qualifying services was 1 (2019 : 1).  
 
All directors are entitled to be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of their 
duties. During the year these amounted to £3,921 (2019 : £10,642). 
 

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
  

 
Property Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £ £ £ £ 
Cost     
At 1 April 2019 - - - - 
Adjustment on transition to  
    IFRS 16 

 
741,064 

 
25,588 

 
303,288 

 
1,069,940 

 ----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ --------------------------------------- 
At 31 March 2020 741,064 25,588 303,288 1,069,940 
 ----------------------------------------- ----------------------------------- ------------------------------------ --------------------------------------- 
Depreciation     
Adjustment on transition to  
    IFRS 16 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Charge for the year 155,758 10,235 80,877 246,870 
 ----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ --------------------------------------- 
At 31 March 2020 155,758 10,235 80,877 246,870 
 ----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ --------------------------------------- 

Net book value     

     

At 31 March 2020 585,306 15,353 222,411 823,070 
 ----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ --------------------------------------- 

At 1 April 2019 - - - - 
 ----------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ ------------------------------------ --------------------------------------- 

 
Included in the above line items are right of use assets as follows: 

 
                                                                                                                                       Net book 
                                                                                                                                           value 
                                                                                                                                               £    
 
 Property 585,306 
 Equipment 15,353 
 Motor Vehicles 222,411 
  ------------------------------------------ 

  823,070 
  =========================================== 
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7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
  

        2020 2019  
           £ £  
    

The Council 2,648,605 1,425,847  
Other receivables 15,860 16,450  
Prepayments and accrued income 143,481 95,307  

 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  

 2,807,946 1,537,604  
 ===========--======================================== ================================================  

 
 
8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

        2020        2019 
           £           £ 
   

Cash at bank and in hand 1,458,549 1,363,057 
 ================================================= ========================================== 

 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the 
following at the end of the year: 
 

        2020        2019 
           £           £ 
   

Cash at bank and in hand 1,458,549 1,363,057 
 ================================================ ================================================= 

 
 
9. RESERVES 
 

Company limited by guarantee 
 
 The Company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the 

member, the Council, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1. 
 

 
10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

         2020   2019 
            £ £ 

 
Payable to trade suppliers 148,834 50,908 
Other payables 93,520 91,579 
Taxation and social security payable 238,244 139,067 
Accruals and deferred income 2,396,158 1,413,952 

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 2,876,756 1,695,506 
 ================================================== ============================================== 
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11.   PROVISIONS 
 

        2020   2019 
           £            £ 

The holiday pay provision represents holiday balances accrued as a result of services 
rendered in the current period and which employees are entitled to carry forward.  The 
provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of absence. 

 
 

Provision for building reinstatement:   
Balance brought forward 82,250 72,200 
Movement for year 8,760 10,050 
 ---------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 

 91,010 82,250 
                                        ==================================== ==================================== 

 
Environmental provision:  

 

Balance brought forward 4,180 4,180 
Movement for year - - 
 ---------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 

 4,180 4,180 
                                        ==================================== ==================================== 
Provision for privately leased building venture:  

 

Balance brought forward 8,571 5,856 

Movement for year 3,250 2,715 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 
 11,821 8,571 
                                        ==================================== ====================================== 
 
Provision for holiday pay:  

 

Balance brought forward 98,194 113,464 

Movement for year 24,656 (15,270) 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 
 122,850 98,194 

 ====================================== ====================================== 
   

   

Total provisions carried forward 229,861 193,195 

                                        ==================================== ===================================== 
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

        2020 2019 
 £   £ 
Financial assets   
 
Financial assets which are debt instruments  
measured at amortised cost 2,664,465 1,442,297 

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 2,664,465 1,442,297 
 ================================================ ============================================= 

 
Financial liabilities   
 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 2,624,112 1,545,439 

 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

 2,624,112 1,545,439 
 ================================================= =========================================== 

 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise balances due from the Council 
and other debtors. 

 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other 

creditors and accruals. 
 

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value of its loans and 
receivables. 

 
 All of the Company’s financial liabilities are due for payment within one year. The 

Company manages the related liquidity risk through the preparation of profit and cash 
flow forecasts, regular monitoring of actual performance against these forecasts, and 
ensuring that adequate sources of finance are in place to meet the requirements of the 
business. 

 
 The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value 

so has no significant exposure to market risk. 
 

The Company prepares reserves and cash flow forecasts, and regularly monitors 
actual performance against these forecasts in order to ensure that adequate sources of 
finance are in place to meet the requirements of the business. In order to maintain 
liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future 
developments, the Company has access to group debt finance. 
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13.    COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 
 

At the end of the year the company had total commitments under non-cancellable 
operating leases as set out below: 

 
                             Land & Buildings   
          2020         2019 
              £             £ 

Operating leases which expire:    
Less than 1 year  - 184,300 
Within 2 to 5 years  - 581,412 
Over 5 years  - 158,400 
  =======================--------=================== ========================================== 

 
                       Other  
      2020     2019 
         £   £ 
Operating leases which expire:    
Less than 1 year  - 116,882 
Within 2 to 5 years  - 318,845 

  ==================================== ===================================== 

 
 
14.  PENSION COMMITMENTS  
 
(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme at 31 March were: 
 
                                                                                   2020                                  2019 
         % of 

     scheme   
      assets           Value 

        % of 
     scheme    
       assets        Value 

              £                    £  
 

Equities 58.5% 17,973,000 62.3% 20,734,000 
Bonds 10.4% 3,183,000 11.2% 3,714,000 
Properties 9.0% 2,761,000 8.9% 2,961,000 
Cash 4.2% 1,276,000 2.6% 877,000 
Alternative assets 11.5% 3,537,000 9.7% 3,247,000 
Other managed funds 6.4% 1,974,000 5.3% 1,770,000 
  -------------------------  ------------------------- 
Total market value of assets  30,704,000  33,303,000 
     
Present value of scheme liabilities  (41,109,000)  (41,968,000) 
  ------------------------------------------------------------------  ------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
Net estimated pension liability  (10,405,000)  (8,665,000) 
  ==========================================================  ========================================================== 
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14.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
 The following information was received from the administering authority regarding the 

detail of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2020, representing the percentages of the 
total Fund held in each asset class (split by those that have a quoted market price in an 
active market, and those that do not). 

 
 Asset breakdown 
 
                                                                                                             31 March 2020                                       
                                                                                                 % Quoted             % Unquoted  
 
 Index Linked Government Securities 
 UK 4.3% - 
 
 Corporate Bonds 
 UK 6.1% - 
 
 Equities 
 UK 4.2% - 
 Overseas 49.2% - 
 
 Property 
 All 2.5% 6.5% 
 
 Others 
 Private equity - 5.1% 
 Infrastructure - 5.9% 
 Timber - 3.6% 
 Private debt - 2.0% 
 Other managed funds - 6.4% 
 Cash/temporary investments - 4.0% 
 
 Net Current Assets 
 Debtors - 0.1% 
  _____ _____ 
 Total 66.3% 33.6% 
  ================================ ================================ 
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14.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
(b)  Asset and liability reconciliation: 
 
         2020          2019 
            £              £  

Reconciliation of liabilities    
    
Liabilities at start of period  41,968,000 38,907,000 
Service cost  1,944,000 1,883,000 
Interest cost  1,002,000 1,003,000 
Employee contributions  347,000 336,000 
Change in financial assumptions  (5,203,000) 2,167,000 
Change in demographic assumptions  (488,000) (2,395,000) 
Settlements and curtailments  567,000 680,000 
Benefits paid  (858,000) (613,000) 
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation  1,830,000 - 
  ---------------------- ---------------------- 
Liabilities at end of period  41,109,000 41,968,000 
  =================================================== ====================================================== 
    

 
(c) Return on scheme assets: 
 
 There was a negative return on scheme assets in 2019/20. This figure will vary year on 

year depending on the assumptions made and the underlying distribution of the fund’s 
assets which will vary during the year and as a result it is not appropriate to break down 
the return on assets across the different asset categories. Actual returns on scheme 
assets have been negative and amounted to £1,736,000 for the year to 31 March 2020. 

 

            2020          2019 
              £                £  

Reconciliation of assets   
    

Assets at start of period  33,303,000 30,539,000 
Interest on assets  804,000 793,000 
Return on assets less interest  (2,540,000) 1,084,000 
Employer contributions  948,000 862,000 
Employee contributions  347,000 336,000 
Benefits paid  (858,000) (613,000) 
Settlement prices received  - 314,000 
Administrative expenses  (10,000) (12,000) 
Other actuarial losses  (1,290,000) - 
  -------------------- -------------------- 
Assets at end of period 

 
30,704,000 
=================================================== 

33,303,000 
=================================================== 
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14.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
(d)   A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31 March 

2019 and updated to 31 March 2020 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit 
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 
         2020        2019 
          %         % 

 Major assumptions: 
Rate of increase in salaries 2.85 3.90  
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 1.85 2.40  
Discount rate 2.35 2.40  
    

(e) Movement in deficit during the year: 
       2020        2019 
          £            £  

At 1 April 2019  (8,665,000) (8,368,000) 
Current service cost  (2,511,000) (2,249,000) 
Net interest cost   (198,000) (210,000) 
Actuarial gains/(losses)       (note 14(b))  31,000   1,312,000 
Employer contributions  948,000 862,000 
Administrative costs   (10,000) (12,000) 
             ----------------------------------------------------            ---------------------------------------------------- 

At 31 March 2020  (10,405,000) (8,665,000) 
  ============================================== ================================================ 

  
 The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough 

Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee. 
  

Defined benefit pension disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial 
review of the pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. These 
disclosures are a one-off assessment at the year-end for accounting disclosure 
purposes. The calculations required for disclosure under IFRSs are more prescriptive. At 
the current time they emphasise the liabilities and produce a net obligation on the 
statement of financial position that is higher than the triennial valuation position.  
 
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that: 

 
• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current 

assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing 
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement. 

 
• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs 

generally. There is a national problem for pension funds both private and public 
sector. 

 
• The Essex County Council Pension Fund is regularly reviewed and additional 

contributions have already been initiated to address the problem over a period of 
years. 
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14.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 

(f) Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:  
 

   2020          2018 
          £              £  

 

Current service cost   2,511,000 2,249,000 
Employer contributions  (948,000) (862,000) 
Administration Costs   10,000 12,000 
              ------------------------------------------------            ------------------------------------------------- 

Adjustment to the income and expenditure account  1,573,000 1,399,000 
   ========================================== ============================================ 

 
 Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs:  
 

       2020          2019 
          £             £  

 

Other finance costs: expected return on assets in 
the scheme  804,000 793,000 
Other finance costs: interest costs  (1,002,000) (1,003,000) 
              ---------------------------------------------------            --------------------------------------------------- 

Net cost  (198,000) (210,000) 
   ============================================ ============================================== 

  
During the year to 31 March 2020 the employer contribution rate was 16.6% and this 
increased to 20.2% from 1 April 2020.  

 
(g) Life assumptions: 
 

           2020 2019 
Life expectancy:     

 

 Current pensioner aged 65    
  male   21.8 21.3 
 female   23.7 23.6 

 
 Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years’ time     
  male   23.2 22.9 
 female   25.2 25.4 
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14.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 

(h) Sensitivity analysis 
  
                                                                                          £000s              £000s              £000s 
 
 Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
  
 Present value of total obligation 40,213 41,109 42,026 
 Projected service cost 1,760 1,806 1,853 
 
  
 Adjustment to long term salary increase +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
 
 Present value of total obligation 41,195 41,109 41,024 
 Projected service cost 1,807 1,806 1,805 
 
  
 Adjustment to pension increases and   
 deferred revaluation +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 
 
 Present value of total obligation 41,944 41,109 40,293 
 Projected service cost 1,853 1,806 1,760 
 
 
 Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions +1 Year None -1 Year 
 
 Present value of total obligation 42,581 41,109 39,690 
 Projected service cost 1,861 1,806 1,753 
   
 
 The primary limitation of the above sensitivity analysis calculations is that each variable 

is considered individually, however in reality all variables are inter-related and therefore 
these calculations do not constitute a complete analysis. 
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15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Ultimate controlling party  
 

 The Company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control 
of the Council, which is also the immediate parent undertaking. The members of the 
Council are considered to be the ultimate controlling parties.  

 
 Key management personnel received remuneration of £338,095 (2019 : £391,709). 

This included pension contributions of £37,778 (2019 : £42,196).  
 
         During the year, Colchester Borough Homes Limited received income of £15,812,103                        

(2018 : £13,717,743) from Colchester Borough Council for the Management Fee, 
Capital recharges and other services. During the year, Colchester Borough Homes 
Limited paid £317,950 (2019 : £298,634) to Colchester Borough Council for support 
services. 

 
         At the year end Colchester Borough Homes Limited was owed £2,648,605                        

(2019 : £1,425,847) by Colchester Borough Council. 
 
16. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 

Since the year end, the UK, and the whole world, has been struck by the Covid 19 
pandemic. This does not have an effect on the financial position shown by these 
accounts and they continue to be drawn up on a going concern basis as explained in 
the accounting policies. If required, the Company will be supported by the Council.  
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The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements 
which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 8. 
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  2020               2019     
                                                                                                £ £ £        
Revenue 
Management fee 9,895,222 9,315,007 
Capital fee 5,596,789 4,141,764 
Trading income 669,215 530,582 
Sundry income 410,318 51,251 
Other income 320,092 260,972 
 -------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------ 

 16,891,636 14,299,576 
  
 
Operating costs (before defined  
benefit pension scheme adjustment) 
Employee costs 7,679,266  7,461,519 
Premises costs 97,972  269,350 
Other operating costs 1,096,305  852,498 
Service delivery direct costs 7,874,621  5,950,573 
 ------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------------- 

  16,748,164 14,533,940 
  ------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

Operating deficit  143,472 (234,364) 
Interest on management fee 10,308 10,368  

 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities 153,780 (223,996) 
Defined benefit pension scheme 
staff cost adjustments (1,573,000) (1,399,000) 
Defined benefit pension scheme 
interest adjustment (198,000) (210,000) 

 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities post 
defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments and pre taxation (1,617,220) (1,832,996)  

 ============================================== ============================================= 
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          £ 

 
       2020 
          £ 

 
   2019 

          £ 
Employee costs    
Salaries 5,548,674  5,381,962 
Employers national insurance contributions 532,224  515,041 
Staff pension contributions 880,264  850,566 
 ----------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------- 

  6,961,162 6,747,569 
Redundancy payments  103,379  50,682 
Agency 327,872  367,387 
Other staff costs 189,007  144,755 
Recruitment 25,208  9,053 
Training and seminars 72,638  142,073 
 ----------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------- 

  718,104 713,950 
  -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

  7,679,266 7,461,519 
  7,461,519 6,778,214 

 

 
 

  
 

Defined benefit pension costs adjustment   1,573,000 1,399,000 
  -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 
  9,252,266 8,860,519 
  ============================================ ============================================== 

Premises costs 
Rent 44,733  229,805 
Utilities 11,832  10,282 
Repairs and maintenance 18,152  20,997 
Other premises costs 23,255  8,266 
 --------------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------- 

  97,972 269,350 
  ============================================ ============================================== 

Other operating costs 
Travel and subsistence  57,545  61,757 
Telephone 88,449  78,893 
Printing, postage and stationery 68,999  77,140 
Publicity and marketing 32,381  14,499 
IT and other equipment 52,557  58,265 
Insurance 83,842  99,036 
Catering 10,697  7,997 
Support services 317,950  298,634 
Internal auditors remuneration 23,219  29,100 
Auditors remuneration 14,400  14,850 
ISO audit 3,333  11,351 
Professional fees and consultants 50,235  90,070 
Other expenses 19,198  9,567 
Depreciation 246,870  - 
Interest payable 23,951  - 
Bank charges 2,679  1,339 
 ----------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------- 

  1,096,305 852,498 
  ============================================ ============================================== 
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          £  

 
  2020 

         £ 
 2019 

 £ 
Service delivery direct costs    
Sub-contractors 7,147,851  5,196,397 
Materials 565,016  522,773 
Vehicle expenses 85,538  161,768 
Ex gratia payments 7,868  8,826 
Grants 57,933  49,092 
Other service delivery direct costs 10,415  11,717 
 ----------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------- 

 
 7,874,621 5,950,573 

  ============================================ ============================================== 
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Appendix C 

Colchester Borough Homes Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
 

1. Scope of Responsibility 
  
Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms-Length Management 
Organisation of Colchester Borough Council (CBC), responsible for the management and 
maintenance of the Council's housing stock and transferred general fund services. In 2019/20, 
these were primarily financed from the Council through a Management Fee of £9,895,000. This fee 
also includes Property Services professional fees, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH 
Revenue work costs. Property Services also manages capital and revenue work costs paid directly 
by CBC, totaling £5,597,000.  
 
There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in place until 
August 2023, with a review in 2020. This clearly sets out the governance arrangements that should 
apply between the two parties and complies with national best practice.   
 
CBH is managed by a Board comprising at least three Council nominees, three residents, three 
independent members and the Chief Executive.  The Memorandum and Articles of Association 
were revised and approved in 2017 to change the number of members on the Board, and to give 
the flexibility to add member(s) of the Executive Management Team. In discharging this overall 
responsibility, Colchester Borough Homes is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 
for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. Two committees report to the Board: Finance & Audit 
and Appointments & Remuneration.  Additionally, there is also a Business Development Panel and 
a Residents’ Panel. These all have formal, approved terms of reference, which are reviewed 
biennially.   
 
 2.The Purpose of the Governance Framework  
 
Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship, good public 
engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service user.  Good governance 
enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well as underpinning that vision with 
mechanisms for control and management of risk.  
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the 
Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with 
and serves the community. It enables the Company to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.  
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of effectiveness. 
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process, designed to: 
 

• Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims and 
objectives  
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• To evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised 

 
• To manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 
The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the year ended 
31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of accounts.  
 
Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through:  
 

• Corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of 
Association, the Code of Governance and the Standing Financial Instructions.   

 
• The employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility for key 

areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal system.  
 

• The preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the executive 
officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and identify variances 
arising during the monthly reporting cycle.  

 
• Business planning based on a Strategic Plan, that sets out key actions to enable CBH to 

achieve its goals for the ensuing year, and the Medium Term Delivery Plan which is 
approved by CBC. This cascades through supporting Service Plans and individual 
performance appraisals. The key aims of the Strategic Delivery Plans are: 

  
 Customer Plan  

o To deliver services that reflects the needs and diversity of our customers  
o To make it easy for customers to do business with us  
o To improve Customer Satisfaction  

 Value for Money, Technology and Investment Plan 
o To invest money in a way that helps customers and communities  
o To use technology to do things better  
o To get the most for the money we spend  

 People Plan  
o To support our staff to do the best job possible  
o To make CBH a great place to work  

 Business Development Plan  
o To protect services by looking after the future of the business 
o To bring in extra income to invest in our services  

 Leadership Plan  
o To show we can be trusted to do what say we will 
o To be clear about our organisational goals and how to achieve them  

 Community Plan  
o To raise awareness of our work in the community  
o To bring together organisations and residents for the benefit of the 

community  
 
The Executive Management and the Board carry out regular reviews of performance against 
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objectives and targets detailed in the Strategic Plan. 
 
3.  Review of Effectiveness  
 
Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework, including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is 
informed by the work of the Executive Directors and Senior Management Team within the 
Company, who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment. This is supported by the Internal Audit’s annual report, and by comments made by 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.  
 
The company has produced a Strategic Plan, setting out the direction of the company until 2022.  
This combined with the Medium Term Delivery Plan are the primary guiding documents for the 
Company. From these plans, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and projects are produced. A 
performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and monitor delivery against these. This 
is a combination of Board, senior management, tenants and CBC scrutiny as well as 
benchmarking against other providers.  
CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance arrangements 
consist of:  
 

• The Board receiving quarterly progress reports on delivery of the Strategic plans and the 
Medium Term Delivery Plan.  

 
• The Appointments & Remuneration Committee considering significant staffing matters.  

 
• The Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout the year, 

reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and monitoring financial 
performance against budgets.  

 
• The Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies against an 

agreed policy review timetable.  
 

• The Residents’ Panel, consisting of involved residents and Resident Board Members, 
reviewing key service areas to help improve service delivery and ensure that residents 
have the opportunity to influence and be involved in governance of the Company.  

 
• The Business Development Panel reviewing performance against the Business 

Development Plan and scrutinising new business opportunities.    
 

• The production and approval of annual Manager Assurance Statements by service 
directors and their teams to assess compliance with key governance processes throughout 
the year.  

 
CBH will ensure that its arrangements to monitor the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements remain in place and reflect best practice.  
 
Internal Audit  
 
Internal Audit was delivered through a contract with Mazars LLP (Mazars). As of 31 March 2020, 
Mazars LLP ceased the role of internal auditor and TIAA has been awarded a five-year contract to 
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replace Mazars from 1st April 2020. 
 
The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion of each 
audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to address them. 
Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented properly by the due date. 
Reports were presented to each Finance & Audit Committee of progress against the audit plan as 
well as the status of outstanding recommendations.   
 
The Head of Internal Audit prepares an annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HOIA) report that 
includes an overall opinion on CBH’s internal control environment based on the results of the 
audit work completed. This was considered by the June 2020 Finance & Audit Committee.  
 
Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in order that 
they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council with the following 
assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements during the year:  
 

• Internal Audit reports 
 

• Summary results of Manager Assurance Statements  
 

• The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report 
(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal control)  

 
External Audit  
 
External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland with a view to 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).  
 
In carrying out the audit work, Scrutton Bland will consider whether the financial statements are 
free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the relative significance of a 
particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a whole. An item will normally be 
considered material if its omission would reasonably influence the decisions of those using the 
financial statements.   
  
Scrutton Bland will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work. This will 
include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations for improvements 
in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will be discussed with 
management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also include details of significant 
adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the audit work. 
 
The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and recommends adoption 
of the financial statements to the Board.  
 
4.  Significant Governance Issues brought forward from 2018/19 
 
There were no significant governance issues or actions brought forward from 2018/19.  The Board 
Effectiveness Review Action Plan included some long-term actions due for completion by 31st 
March 2020, however with the appointment of a new Chair and new Board members, these 
outstanding actions have now been incorporated into the future development of the Board under 
the Leadership Strategic Delivery Plan. 
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5.  Significant Governance Issues 2019/20 
 
Governance issues identified through the Governance Assurance Process in 2019/20 that are to 
be addressed in 2020/21 are: 
 

• Further procurement training. 
• Budget management training and support. 
• To embed the new risk management process and provide risk training to staff. 

 
Action Plan  
 
An action plan is set out below to address the governance issues that have been identified through 
the governance assurance process. Progress against this plan will be monitored by the Finance 
and Audit Committee and Board.  
 

Description Action Responsibility Target 
Completion Date 

Procurement  Additional training Director of Business 
Improvement 

Dec 2020 
 

Budget 
Management 
Training 

Establish new reports and 
provide training. 

Head of Finance Nov 2020 

Risk Management  
 

Update Policy, Strategy 
and Framework. Conduct 
Risk Appetite exercise with 
Board members. Embed 
process. 
 
Training 

Director of Business 
Improvement 

Jul 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Sep 2020 
 
Through completing this action plan the Company is satisfied that it will have made the 
improvements that were identified in its review of effectiveness.   
 
 
 
Signed:  __________________   
               (Chair of the Board)  
 
 
Signed:  __________________   
               (Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee)  
 
 
Signed:  __________________   
               (Chief Executive Officer) 



 

 

 
  

Colchester Borough Homes Limited 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 2019/20 

 
May 2020 
 

  
  
  
  

This report (“Report”) was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of Colchester Borough Homes Limited and terms for the preparation and scope of the Report have been 
agreed with them. The matters raised in this Report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that 
the information provided in this Report is as accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation provided and 
consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this Report is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that 
may be required. 
The Report was prepared solely for the use and benefit of Colchester Borough Homes Limited and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility 
and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment 
and/or modification. Accordingly, any reliance placed on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any third party is 
entirely at their own risk.  

Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility, Appendix 2 of this report, for further information about responsibilities, limitations and confidentiality. 

. 
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Introduction 
Purpose of this Report 

This report summarises the work that Internal Audit (Mazars LLP) has undertaken and the key control environment themes identified across Colchester Borough 
Homes Limited (CBH) during the 2019/20 financial year. 

The purpose of the Annual Internal Audit Report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit annual reporting requirements set out in the UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS).  The PSIAS requirements are that the report must include: 

 An annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, risk and control framework (the control 
environment); 

 A summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived (including reliance placed on the work by other assurance bodies); and 

 A statement on conformation with the PSIAS and the results of the internal audit quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP), if applicable. 

The report should also include: 

 The disclosure of any qualifications to that opinion, together with reasons for the qualification; 

 The disclosure of any impairments or restriction in scope; 

 A comparison of the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned and a summary of the performance of the internal audit function against its 
performance measures and targets; 

 Any issues judged to be particularly relevant to the preparation of the annual governance statement; and 

 Progress against any improvement plans resulting from QAIP external assessment. 

Overview of Internal Audit Approach 

As Internal Audit, our role is to provide an annual assurance statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of CBH’s systems of governance, risk management 
and internal control. 

Overview of Work Done 

The Audit Plan for 2019/20 included a total of 13 internal audit projects; one of which (Housing Rents including Former Tenant Arrears) was a shared audit with 
Colchester Borough Council (CBC).  One 2018/19 audit, Capital Works was completed during quarter 1 2019/20 and was awarded a ‘Substantial Assurance’ 
opinion.  We have liaised with senior management throughout the year to ensure that internal audit work undertaken continues to focus on the high risk areas 
and, in the light of new and ongoing developments in the organisation, help ensure the most appropriate use of our resources. 

As a result of this liaison, the days from two audits relating to Corporate Governance and Allocations, were used to increase the budget for the IT audit of 
SharePoint.  It should be noted that there were no scope impairments or restrictions in 2019/20. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, there was some minor 
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delay in finalising the remaining 2019/20 draft reports prior to the end of April 2020 as planned.  

We generally undertake individual internal audit projects with the overall objective of providing the Finance & Audit Committee, the Chief Executive and other 
officers with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the key controls over a number of management’s objectives.  
Other audit projects are geared more towards the provision of specific advice and support to management to enhance the economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
of the services and functions for which they are responsible.  All internal audit work was performed in compliance with the PSIAS. 

All internal audit reports include our recommendations and agreed actions that, if implemented by management, will enhance the control environment and the 
operation of the key management controls. 

This report sets out the results of the work performed as follows: 

 Overall summary of work performed by Internal Audit including an analysis of report gradings; and 

 Key themes identified during our work in 2019/20. 

In this report, we have drawn on the findings and assessments included in all internal audit reports issued in 2019/20.  
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Overall Summary 
As illustrated in the tables below, we have noted an improvement in the level of performance in the CBH control environment during the audit year.  During the 
2019/20 year, two internal audit projects were rated as ‘full assurance’ (15%) whilst 10 were rated as ‘substantial assurance’ (77%). There were no internal 
audit projects rated as ‘limited assurance’.  In one further case (8%) no assurance grading was given (critical friend review of Strategy and Risk Management).   

Report Ratings 

The table below summarises the assurance gradings for our audit assignments in the year. 

 Number of Projects 

Assurance Gradings 2019/20 2018/19 

Full 2 15% 4 44.5% 

Substantial 10 77% 5 55.5% 

Limited 0 0% 0 0% 

No  0 0% 0 0% 

Not Yet Complete 0 0% 0 0% 

No Assurance Grading Given 1 8% 0 0% 

Total Audits Delivered 13*  9*  

* During 2018/19 and 2019/20 a Key Financial Systems audit was undertaken which encompassed Creditors, Debtors and the General Ledger.  Whilst only one 
report was issued, each of the areas were provided with their individual audit opinions, which are included in the figures above.   

  



                                                                                                                                      Colchester Borough Homes Limited – Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

 

  4 

 

Opinion 2019/20 

From the Internal Audit work undertaken in compliance with the PSIAS in 2019/20, it is our opinion that we can provide Substantial Assurance that the system 
of internal control in place at CBH for the year ended 31 March 2020 accords with proper practice.  The assurance can be further broken down between financial 
and non-financial systems, as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 
Our overall opinion is that internal controls 
within operational systems operating 

throughout the year are fundamentally sound. 

ASSURANCE - 

NON-FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

 
Our overall opinion is that internal controls 
within financial systems operating throughout 

the year are fundamentally sound. 

ASSURANCE - 

FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 
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Key Themes 
As Internal Audit continues to apply a risk based approach, our audit projects assess the effectiveness of controls across a number of areas.  Our 
findings on these are set out below.  Overall, we have seen CBH maintain the control environment effectively and whilst some remedial action needs 
to take place, we have noted that management has already started addressing our most significant findings. 

Internal Control - Key Financial Systems 

Each year Internal Audit carries out audit projects of CBH’s key financial systems. 

This process helps provide CBH with the necessary assurance that key financial controls in the fundamental systems are operating satisfactorily and support a 
robust control environment.  It may also allow CBH to limit external audit fees spent on reviewing its activities.  The table below summarises the audit gradings 
in this key area:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overall there has been little change in the control environment around the key financial systems. Although the percentage of ‘full’ assurance opinions has 
technically fallen compared to 2018/19, it should be noted that there were six key financial audits conducted in 2019/20, compared to only five in 2018/19. The 
audits of Debtors, General Ledger, Housing Rents and Payroll all received the same assurance opinions between years. The only difference was the opinion 
awarded for Creditors (Full assurance in 2018/19 compared to Substantial assurance in 2019/20). The combined impact of these small changes does impact 
quite significantly in terms of percentages, as shown in the graphs above. However, it should be noted that both Full and Substantial assurance opinion are 
considered to be positive / favourable assurance ratings.  

17% 20% 33%

67%

Assurance Gradings - Key Financial Systems 2019/20

Full

Substantial 60%

40%

Assurance Gradings - Key Financial Systems 2018/19

Full

Substantial
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Internal Control – Non-Financial Systems 

Each year Internal Audit also carries out audit projects of non-financial systems, providing assurance to management on the controls in place to mitigate against 
perceived risks as well as supporting the control environment. Full and Substantial assurance opinions continue to be awarded in the majority of cases, with no 
Limited assurance opinions being awarded in either 2019/20 or 2018/19. The table below summarises the audit grading split over the past two years: 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

86%

14%

Assurance Gradings - Non-Financial Systems 2019/20

Full

Substantial

No Opinion
Given

 

25%

75%

Assurance Gradings - Non-Financial Systems 2018/19

Full

Substantial
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Performance of Internal Audit 

At the start of the contract, a number of performance indicators were formulated to monitor the delivery of the Internal Audit service to CBH.  The table below 
shows the actual and targets for each indicator for the period: 

Performance Measure Target Actual 

Percentage of Internal Audit plan completed 100% 100% 

Percentage of FTE fully or partly CCAB/IIA qualified input 65% 87%  

Percentage of draft audit reports issued on time 90% 100% (10/10)   

Percentage of responses to the draft report received on time 90% 60% (6/10) 

Percentage of final audit reports issued on time 90% 100% (10/10) 

Percentage of recommendations accepted in 2019/20 100% 100% (36/36) 

Service Managers satisfaction score  Satisfactory 
(only one reply 

received) 
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Appendix 1 - Key to Assurance Levels 
Assurance Gradings 

We have four categories by which we classify internal audit assurance over the processes we examine, and these are defined as follows: 

Assurance Level Evaluating and Testing Conclusion 

  Full 
Assurance 

There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the client’s objectives. 
The control processes tested are being consistently applied. 

  Substantial 
Assurance 

While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there are weaknesses, which put some of the client’s objectives at risk. 
There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the control processes may put some of the client’s objectives at risk. 

  Limited 
Assurance 

Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to put the client’s objectives at risk. 
The level of non-compliance puts the client’s objectives at risk. 

  No 
Assurance 

Control processes are generally weak leaving the processes/systems open to significant error or abuse. 
Significant non-compliance with basic control processes leaves the processes/systems open to error or abuse. 

 

Recommendation Gradings 

In order to assist management in using our internal audit reports, we categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority as follows: 

Priority Level Definition 

1 Major issues for the attention of senior management and the Finance and Audit Committee. 

2 Important issues to be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 

3 Minor issues resolved on site with local management. 
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Appendix 2 - Statement of Responsibility 
We take responsibility to Colchester Borough Homes Limited for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 

The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with 
management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under 
review with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this area are managed. 

We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  However, our procedures alone should 
not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound 
systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.   

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement 
of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact 
before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application 
of sound management practices. 

This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent.   To the fullest extent 
permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the 
Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk. 

Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 0C308299. 

 

 



Appendix E 
Risk Impact Table - Descriptors    

     
IMPACT Minor Significant Serious Major 

RISK TYPE 1 2 3 4 
FINANCIAL 
The direct financial loss as a 
result of the event occurring 
for normal Operations and 
Trading. 

Normal operations 
Between £0 and £5,000  
 
Trading 
Between £0 and £10,000 

Normal operations 
Between £5,000 and £20,000  
 
Trading 
Between £10,000 and £50,000 

Normal operations 
Between £20,000 and £50,000 
 
Trading 
Between £50,000 and £100,000 

Normal operations 
In excess of £50,000 
 
Trading 
In excess of £100,000 

          
REPUTATIONAL 
The adverse reputational 
damage to CBH due to an event 
occurring. 

Adverse comments amongst 
staff no external impact. 
Stakeholders not aware 

Adverse local press/public 
awareness, low level negative 
social media comment, 
stakeholder aware of issue 

Extended local press coverage, 
extensive negative social media, 
negative coverage in industry 
press, criticism from 
stakeholders  

Adverse national media coverage / 
public awareness, intervention by 
stakeholder 

          
PEOPLE 
The negative impact 
(nuisance/frustration, physical  
injury or mental health) to a 
member of staff, contractor or 
the general public.    

Staff - Minor injuries or stress 
to with no workdays lost or 
minimal or no medical 
treatment. No impact on 
morale. 
 
Others - Minor nuisance or 
disturbance to small number of 
people for duration of up to 3 
days. No physical injuries. 

Staff - Injuries or stress level 
requiring some medical 
treatment, potentially 1 or 2 
workdays lost. Potential impact 
on morale & performance of 
small number of individuals or a 
single team. 
 
Others - Persistent nuisance or 
disturbance to small number of 
people for in excess of 3 days, 
or short duration nuisance or 
disturbance to large number of 
people, or minor injury to a 
person requiring minimal or no 
medical treatment 

Staff - Injuries or stressful 
experience requiring medical 
treatment and up to 6 workdays 
lost. Major impact on morale & 
performance of several teams. 
 
Others - Injuries or stress level 
requiring some medical 
treatment, of a severity that for 
an employed person could result 
in up to 3 workdays lost, or 
minor injury to multiple people, 
or significant nuisance or 
disturbance to a large number of 
people for 2 to 3 days 

Staff - Life threatening or multiple 
serious injuries or worse injury, or 
prolonged work place stress. Severe 
impact on morale & service 
performance throughout most of the 
organisation. 
 
Other - Serious injuries or stressful 
experience requiring medical 
treatment and of a severity that for 
an employed person could result in 
more than 5 workdays lost.  Injuries 
requiring medical treatment to 
multiple people, or single life 
threatening injury , or significant 
nuisance or disturbance to a large 
number of for in excess of 3 days 

          



  
COMPLIANCE 
A breach in statutory, 
regulatory or policy 
requirements.  

Minor breach of internal 
procedures, no consequential 
loss but resulting in adverse 
audit report  

Minor external compliance 
breach with no financial 
sanction. Significant breaches 
of internal procedures resulting 
in a financial loss of up to 
£1,000, adverse audit finding 

Breach of external regulations 
with likelihood of financial cost 
up to £10,000 and/or other form 
of sanction. Or significant 
breaches of internal procedures 
resulting in financial loss  of 
£1,001 to £10,000.   

Significant breach of external 
regulations requiring disclosure to 
regulatory body. Likelihood of 
financial cost in excess of £10,000 
and/or other form of sanction. Or 
significant breaches of internal 
procedures resulting in financial loss 
in excess of £10,000  

          
QUALITY OF SERVICE 
A failure to deliver the service 
requirement and/or the agreed 
service targets.  A failure to 
meet the annual strategic 
delivery plan objective or the 
inability to meet the 3 year 
target. 

Unavailability or significant 
impairment of: Priority Service 
for 1/2 day, or Single Customer 
Facing Service for up to 1 day, 
or Back Office Systems for up 
to 2 days.  
 
Little impact on the 
organisational strategy or on it 
achieving objectives 

Unavailability or significant 
impairment of: Priority Service 
for 1 day, or Multiple Customer 
Facing Services 1 day, or Single 
Customer Facing Service for up 
to 3 days, or Back Office 
Systems for up to 3 days.  
 
Some impact on organisational 
strategy or on achieving 
objectives but this could be 
resolved within existing 
resources. 

Unavailability or significant 
impairment of: Priority Service 
for 2 to 4 days, or Multiple 
Customer Facing Services  for 2 
to 5 days, or Single Customer 
Facing Service for up to 1 week, 
or Back Office Systems up to 1.5 
weeks  
 
Significant impact on the 
organisational strategic/critical 
objectives and would require 
additional resources to 
overcome 

Unavailability or significant 
impairment of: Priority Service for in 
excess of 4 days, or Multiple 
Customer Facing Services for in 
excess of 5 days, or Single Customer 
Facing Service for over 1 week, or 
Back Office Systems for over 1.5 
weeks  
 
Would require a significant change in 
organisational strategy/critical 
objectives  

          
 

Risk Likelihood Table   
Descriptor Score Frequency of event occurring Time Period 

Rare 1 Would only happen in very exceptional circumstances Less than once in 10 years 

Unlikely 2 Not expected to happen but definite potential exists - unlikely to occur. Once in 10 years 

Possible 3 May occur occasionally, has happened before on occasions - reasonable chance of occurring. Once in 5 years 

Likely 4 Strong possibility that this could occur - could occur several times. Once in a year 

Almost certain 5 This is expected to happen frequently / in most circumstances - more likely to occur than not. Once in 3 months 

 



Risk Tolerance - Heat Maps by Type      
Key   Acceptable risk        

   Acceptable risk but require close monitoring      

   Unacceptable risk        
           
Financial - Operations and 
Trading     Compliance     

Almost Certain 5 10 15 20  
Almost 
Certain 5 10 15 20 

Likely 4 8 12 16  Likely 4 8 12 16 
Possible 3 6 9 12  Possible 3 6 9 12 
Unlikely 2 4 6 8  Unlikely 2 4 6 8 

Rare 1 2 3 4  Rare 1 2 3 4 

 Minor Significant Serious Major   Minor Significant Serious Major 
           
Reputational       Quality of Service    

Almost Certain 5 10 15 20  
Almost 
Certain 5 10 15 20 

Likely 4 8 12 16  Likely 4 8 12 16 
Possible 3 6 9 12  Possible 3 6 9 12 
Unlikely 2 4 6 8  Unlikely 2 4 6 8 

Rare 1 2 3 4  Rare 1 2 3 4 

 Minor Significant Serious Major   Minor Significant Serious Major 
           
People           

Almost Certain 
 

5 10 15 20       
Likely 4 8 12 16       

Possible 3 6 9 12       
Unlikely 2 4 6 8       

Rare 1 2 3 4       
 Minor Significant Serious Major       

 



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

Wednesday 1st July 2020 
 
 
 

Report Title Item 6 - Recovery Plan – CBH 2.0 

Author Matt Armstrong 
Matt.armstrong@cbhomes.org.uk 
Tel: 07951 013364 

Report Objective: To update the Board on the recovery plan and the progress made to date. 

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

The recovery plan is being monitored weekly and services already resumed are 
being constantly reviewed as the Government eases restrictions nationally.  The 
safety of our staff and customers will always come first. 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☐ 

Home☐ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting  
Open  Approval  

 
  Recommendations 
  The Board is asked to: 
  
I.NOTE the progress made on the recovery plan. 
ii.NOTE the current service recovery status. 
 

  Executive summary 
  

The recovery plan is progressing well with a structured approach to resuming services and a robust 
communications plan to ensure consistent and current messaging is being communicated to all 
stakeholders.  The majority of services are planned to return between June and August although some 
will be delivered differently in order to comply with social distancing measures.  Planning is starting on 
phase 2 of recovery which will cover the period between September 2020 and March 2021 where new 
challenges will arise. 
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  Implications:  

 
Strategic Plan  The recovery of services affects all 6 strategic plans and the recovery is built on 

maintaining the targets previously set. 
Regulatory/Legal 
 

The recovery plan is based on following government advice.  Any statutory 
services where compliance is not be met is being monitored and reported to CBC 
in line with both government and trade body advice.  

Financial/Budgetary Covid-19 has created immediate budget implications such as the requirement for 
additional PPE and IT equipment and will also create medium to long term 
implications as social distancing adds costs to the delivery of services.  A budget 
re-profiling exercise is taking place currently and a report will be presented to the 
F&A committee on the 29th July 2020. 

Health & Safety A covid-19 risk assessment has been conducted and is available on the website.  
Each project stream considers the H&S implications in line with government 
advice.  Contractors risk assessments and method statements have been collated 
and they are only given orders to work in Tenants properties if they meet the CBH 
requirements. 

Risk Assessment  The corporate risk register has been updated to reflect additional covid-19 related 
issues and mitigations have been reviewed to ensure they are still valid.  Risk 
assessments carried out through all levels of the organisation have been reviewed 
and amended where necessary due to covid-19. 

Human Resources The recovery plan has redeployed staff into critical areas of the business which 
have experienced pressure on resources.  Part of the CBH 2.0 project 
incorporates the review and restructure of service areas based on the initial work 
(pre-covid-19) completed following the senior management review in 2019. 

Equality and 
Diversity  

As services resume and we incorporate new ways of working, equality and 
diversity is reassessed through an impact assessment to ensure any changes 
haven’t affected any tenants or staff members. 

Value for Money VFM is embedded within our change management process and cost benefit 
exercises are conducted to ensure we achieve value in any changing or 
resumption of services. 

Environmental and 
Sustainability  

Embedded within the project principles, as planning takes place to resume 
services, the impact on the environment is being reviewed and the consideration 
of including further green initiatives in the delivery of that service. 

 
 

1. Recovery Plan and Project structure 
a. Project Structure 

The Covid-19 recovery project is named CBH 2.0 which aims to not just recover but use this 
opportunity to transform services CBH deliver and build back better.  The structure identifies 3 
key streams to recover: 

• Our Organisation 
• Business  
• Customer and Community 

The structure follows the Agile project management methodology and details the project 
owners, project managers and how our recovery feeds into the Councils recovery plan. 
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b. Project Objectives 

The project objectives are: 
1. To reinstate service delivery taking account of new risks to ensure health and safety of 

customers, staff and contractors.  
2. To use the recovery plan as a business transformation opportunity and retain the beneficial 

new ways of working.  
3. To make best use of technology in the workplace and in delivery of services.  
4. To strengthen our Business Continuity Plan to ensure minimum disruption for future 

outbreaks.  
5. To use our Community plan to continue and develop local partnerships.  
 

c. Project Principles 
The corporate management team created a set of principles which are applied in the planning 
of recovering services.  This ensures that we capture and keep the good working practices 
established during the pandemic and use the opportunity to transform the way we manage and 
deliver our services.  There is rationale detailed behind each principle to clarify the meaning of 
each one. 

i. Use technology to its full potential 
ii. Build back better 
iii. Develop our agile approach to work 
iv. Use customer insight to inform service recovery 
v. One company approach 
vi. Set achievable plans and targets 
vii. Ensure plan are flexible and sustainable 

 
d. Communications and Engagement Plan 

A comms plan has been established to ensure consistent messages are communicated to all 
stakeholders and channels established so regular messaging and updates are achievable.  A 
summary of the comms channels and methods are as follows: 

• Residents Letter monthly via post and social media 
• Residents News & Views monthly via post and website 
• Tenants covid-19 leaflet (for home visits) via website, email and in person 
• Board update to members fortnightly (previously weekly) via Teams 
• Portfolio Holder (and Ward Councillors) update weekly via briefing and email 
• Staff Bulletin weekly via email 
• Live broadcast to staff (including recording to watch back) fortnightly via Teams 

Internally the corporate management team meet weekly (previously twice a week) and 
agenda items are reserved at the majority of meeting for covid-19 and recovery updates. 
 

2. Method of recovering services 
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a. Project List 
A project list has been established listing all sub-projects, initiatives and actions required to get 
services resumed.  Each project has a list of outcomes the programme team can measure 
success against along with start and end dates for coordination with other recovery streams.  
Risks have been identified and mitigated against and equality issues arising out of disrupted or 
partially resumed services have been identified and mitigated.  Resource and budget 
requirements are identified as part of the planning, allowing the programme team to redeploy 
staff where required and manage the budgets in resuming services. 
 

b. Lessons Learnt 
An exercise was conducted with the corporate management team to capture the lessons learnt 
during the pandemic and is kept updated as services resume.  This allows sharing of good 
working practices across departments.  The lessons learnt table can be seen at appendix 1. 

 
c. Tenant Consultation 

It was identified early on that the success of any service resuming was that tenants were 
listened to and were a part of the transformation.  Some statutory services didn’t require 
consultation and were resumed quickly but where the project planning identified better ways of 
delivering, managing, communicated and monitoring services, we have consulted with 
Tenants to ensure it works for them.  Consultation methods include pilots, telephone 
conversations, feedback and online surveys. 

 
d. Change Management 

Resuming and in many cases transforming services requires staff to be brought into the new 
way of working and delivering services.  The project team are using the John Kotter change 
management methodology which has 8 steps to ensure the change is successful and stays in 
place once a service is resumed.  The 8 steps run in sequence and project managers are 
required to satisfy themselves each step has been completed before moving onto the next.  As 
a management team we recognise staff had had change forced onto them during this 
pandemic and that it is vital they are fully behind the new ways of working before we 
implement. 
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e. Recovery Dashboard 

A recovery dashboard, shown at appendix 2, details the status of each service that is being 
resumed.  A Red, Amber, Green indicator is used to quickly identify the service status.  This 
dashboard is shared internally and a website version, with less detail, is available for our 
Residents. 
 

3. Progress made to date 
a. Repairs and Maintenance 

An emergency repairs service remains in place with two specific trades, fencing and glazing, 
resumed to conduct backlog works in addition.  All sub-contractors have now provided risk 
assessments to ensure they can operate safely under social distancing rules. Sub-contractors 
still have the majority of their staff on furlough and are only prepared to take them off once a 
consistent level of work can be established. 

  
b. Asset Management 

The capital programme remains on hold and communication with Tenants has started to 
create property lists and work programmes.  The take-up from Tenants has been very positive 
with the majority wanting capital works.  Works planned to restart in July / August include 
home improvements (heating, kitchens and bathrooms), fire door replacements and adaptation 
work deemed urgent.  Sub-contractors have been mobilised to ensure supply chains are in 
place and safe methods of working meets social distancing rules. 

 
c. Housing Management 

The Gateway to Home Choice reopened on the 4th June and the lettings process has resumed 
with virtual viewings and restricted visits in place.  Void work has never stopped fully but is 
now resumed to a normal service, albeit the contractor has not released all their staff from 
furlough so turnaround is slow.  Other services which were only disrupted and never stopped 
fully and are now back to business as usual include successions and assignments, the work of 
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the finance inclusion team and the caretaking team.  Services still disrupted and only partly 
resumed include rent collection and the anti-social behaviour team.  The assisted gardening 
schemes resumed in early June and Sheltered services are now back to twice weekly visits 
and daily phone calls to Tenants remain in place. Mutual exchanges are planned to resume at 
the end of June. 

 
d. Housing Solutions 

Homelessness advice service remains disrupted with the Library closed and telephone 
applications only, face-to-face interviews are planned to resume in early July using the open 
space at Greenstead Housing Office (with social distancing measures in place). Doorstep 
appointments are available where deemed urgent. Rough sleepers currently homed in the 
Riverside hotel and Elfreda House are being moved into alternative accommodation with a 
view to have Riverside empty by the end of July and Elfreda by the end of September. 

 
e. Design and Construction Management 

The DCM team, currently in a design cycle, have had minimal disruption to service delivery. 
The Mercury Rising project has incurred a delay but the site didn’t close and has been 
adhering to social distancing rules since May.  Site visits remain reduced.  The councils 
corporate building maintenance programme is on hold with one contractor returning to 
complete work on Leisure World’s roof, started prior to the lockdown.   

 
f. Compliance 

Gas servicing has resumed in full and government advice on allowing tenants to choose to 
delay services has resulted in services falling outside of the 12 month deadline.  Further 
checks are made on these properties including assessing the age of the boiler and the results 
of the previous service to mitigate any safety concerns.  All decisions are recorded in line with 
advice from Gas Safe.   
The electrical testing programme is planned to resume in July and work is currently being 
booked in with Tenants, a procurement has taking place and is being evaluated to ensure the 
ambitious annual programme is able to be delivered.   
Fire risk assessments have resumed in communal areas but not within individual sheltered 
flats due to tenant’s vulnerability.  Advice has been sought from Essex Fire Brigade and 
previous risk assessments reviewed (of which all actions had been completed prior to 
lockdown) to mitigate and balance the risk of not completing in full.   
Asbestos surveys remain in place for emergency works only and the annual condition checks 
of known asbestos (majority in communal areas) has been completed.   
Lift servicing has resumed in full in all communal areas. 
Legionella flushing and temperature checks remains in place in sheltered schemes. Water 
risk assessments have been conducted in two storey blocks, the majority have shown no 
shared water tanks and minimal risk. 
CBH meet weekly with CBC to review compliance related decisions and provide updates on 
the current status of the big 6 - gas, electrics, fire, lifts, asbestos and water.  The CBH 
compliance position is very much in line with the majority of housing providers nationally, 
based on the results of the monthly Coronavirus Operational Response Survey (CORS) 
results collated and published by the Regulator of Social Housing. 
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4. Next steps 
Services will continue to be resumed through July and August and planning is starting for Phase 2 
of recovery which will cover the period between September 2020 and March 2021.  It is expected 
new challenges will arise during this period as restrictions are lifted such as the impact of the 
furlough scheme ending, the eviction ban ending, the fallout of the ending of operation shield and 
the start of a national recession.  There is also winter planning to consider and the possibility of a 
second wave of covid-19. 
 

5. Appendices 
• Appendix 1 - Lessons Learnt 
• Appendix 2 - Recovery Dashboard 
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Owner Service Category

Do's/Don'ts's
Future 

considerations Situation/Experience
Impact
H/M/L

Lessons learnt/
Recommendations

Actions required/Implement 
lessons learnt Project Principle

Gareth 
Mitchell Governance Board meetings Need to move board meetings on line M

Shift to MS Teams for board members has 
been smooth because of the 121 support 
put in place - we should build on the 
progress made

Use technology to its full 
potential

Gareth 
Mitchell CEO CBC liaison Response cell structure L

Direct interaction with CBC senior 
managers and cabinet members has 
provided reassurance and built confidence 
but is time consuming Build back better

Gareth 
Mitchell CMT CMT meetings Need to adapt CMT decision-making and meeting M

to CMT decision making involving more 
reporting by exception and greater 
accountability for decision making outside Build back better

Karen 
Williams

Rent Arrears Communication  
1st, 2nd and 3rd Rent Arrears letters (current 
process)

H
Comms via le er escala on did not work.  
Nudge theory, to consider alternative 
methods to increase impact

Consider other services 
areas that may be affected.
Consider Policy/process 
change

Use customer insight to 
inform service recovery

Karen 
Williams

Engagement Communication
HO's more engaging with Tenants - calling Tenants 
in new patch etc.

M
Build back better

Kirk Braker
Repair & 

Maintenance Communication
Better use of technologies - Teams for Trade Team 
Meeting M Very slow on the up take for staff??

Use technology to its full 
potential

Cong Gu Finance Communication

being audited remotely - all comms by emails. to be 
able to explain numbers in a simplified way for 
external people to understand! H

provide background information; look at 
last year's workings; pointers

Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Karen 
Loweman all Communication

Lone working provides less contact time to discuss 
issues with others H

Review and develop a FAQs 
area or confidential email 
box for staff enquiries and 
responses Build back better

Tracey 
Brushett

rough Sleeper 
team

co-ordinating responses 
and services

all partners trying to respond at the same time 
doing the same thing. Chaotic H

Utilise the CHAP's meetings to focus the 
responses

Identify other member s of 
CBH who can help 
supplement the RS team if 

Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Mark Wicks

Asset  
Management, 
and Repair & 
Maintenance Data management

Duplication of data (partly created by client 
requests). H

Need to consolidate the data collection, 
and consider where existing can be used 
to fulfil further purposes. Build back better

Kirk Braker
Repair & 

Maintenance

Emergency plan  - 
second part of all job 

roles
What functions were important, and which ones 
should have been furloughed?? H

Clear document stating what was the clear 
roles of each member of staff, then used 
to aid the redeployment  

Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Mark Wicks CBH
Existing flexibility and 

resilience

The organisation has adapted extremely well to a 
very difficult set of circumstances - partly due to 
already being able to work in an agile way. H Build on existing strengths.

Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Kirk Braker CBH   Did the plan work?? H Was the business Continuity Plan used??
Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Karen 
Williams

HR 
management

HR working practices
121's not always working remotely if family 
members in household and staff cannot open up.

H
Consider alternative method - possible 
good use of office space once open.

Build back better

Tracey 
Brushett

Gateway to 
Homechoice

HR working practices need to consider working practices on 1-1's, H
need to have laptops or monitors as using 
1-1's impacts on performance

when replacing IT 
equipment get laptops 
instead of 1-1's

Use technology to its full 
potential

CBH 2.0 Lessons Learnt



Tracey 
Brushett

Gateway to 
Homechoice

HR working practices
need to consider working practices to ensure staff 
take appropriate breaks

M

 consider where staff are accessing 
working from home from, some staff are 
working in their bedrooms due to other 
household members being around.

factor in breaks to help staff 
separate their work from 
home life

Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Kirk Braker
HR 

management
HR working practices

A 'rant' hotline! Open communication for staff to 
speak freely and confidentially

Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Angelique 
Ryan/Gerardi

ne

HR 
management

HR working practices
Staff having the correct facilities at home to work 
accorded long term

H Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Kirk Braker
Repair & 

Maintenance HR working practices Buddy System Build back better

Cong Gu Finance HR working practices

was expected for another staff member who knew 
the team well to manage the team effectively, but 
the solution was not ideal M

Management of the team to ensure tasks 
are completed on time and their wellbeing 
looked after are very important to keep up 
the morale

line management is back in 
house and regular catches 
up are booked. Build back better

Kirk Braker Governance ICT solution Compliance Register of CBH activities H
We need an more efficient form of 
recording this information across CBH and 
its SLA. Build back better

Karen 
Loweman all Increase risk of fraud

Reduced face to face interviews and home visits 
increase likelihood of fraud.  We have seen increase 
in potential illegal occupancy via cuckooing etc H

Develop ways to identify tenants and 
customers of services via Nino checks and 
cross reference with DWP or Police etc.  
Research Gov.id further to bring into NPS

Risk assessments
Gov.id research Build back better

Kirk Braker
Repair & 

Maintenance Information overload
How could we have managed all the information 
better?? H

Should we have appointed a team 
member do this??? One Company approach

Mark Wicks CBH 
Interpretation of 

guidance
Guidance interpreted differently by 
individuals/groups (e.g. Site Operating Procedures). M

It is necessary to work through the 
application of guidance with the various 
groups/individuals, however, this is time 
consuming. 

Wherever possible ensure there is an 
agreed application of guidance. One Company approach

Karen 
Loweman all Keys and locks

key cutting and handover has been limited by 
availability of locksmith M

For Asset management team to consider 
SMART locks and suited fobs for access to 
communal blocks

For Asset management team 
to consider SMART locks and 
suited fobs for access to 
communal blocks

Use technology to its full 
potential

Karen 
Loweman all Lone working

As home working and agile work increases we need 
to invest in security for staff with alarm system H

To support staff we need to 
review lone working 
equipment and process

Use technology to its full 
potential

Karen 
Williams

Housing 
Management Older Person Service Safeguarding L

Moving rough sleepers in to live alongside 
our older vulnerable tenants. Could have 
moved our tenants out before moving the 
rough sleepers in. 

It possibly will never happen 
again, but if it did to take a 
planned approach and place 
our sheltered tenants first.

Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Karen 
Williams

Housing 
Management Older Person Service Telephone contact and activity newsletters 

improved and increased our contact with 
our older tenants 

Recovery plan to ensure that 
we blend the offer to our 
older tenants following 
consultation 

Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Cong Gu Finance
Operational working 

practices

Paperless processes  -was more paper reliant; had 
to find a solution to be paper less and more 
electronic M

forced to find a solution at a short notice - 
more adaptable/ use existing resources

Use technology to its full 
potential

Cong Gu Finance
Operational working 

practices

Simplify processes use this opportunity to suit the 
new normal to review processes to realise 
efficiency H

link with other departments and teams, 
assess the consequences for the changes 
and appraise the results by outputs. Build back better



Cong Gu Finance
Performance 
Management

Team members work from home and different 
hours to fit in care needs. Managing performance in 
a caring way not perceived to be micro managing H

the jury is still out. regular catch ups, task 
check list, resource redeployment

Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Karen 
Williams

Housing 
Management

Productivity Homeworking H
Teams learning to work differently and 
create efficiencies 

Develop our Agile approach to 
work

Karen 
Loweman Property inspections

Manual process - difficult to send to customer or 
share M

Explore inventory and 
property inspection app - 
site audit pro Upkeep or 
similar

Use technology to its full 
potential

Angelique 
Ryan

HR 
management

Recruitment Widening of the recruitment pool of applicants M
Considering the roles and how remote 
work will suit the JAS and management of 
the position

Consider all options when 
recruiting Build back better

Tracey 
Brushett

Housing 
Options

Remote service impacts
Need to do EqIA on the way remote services are 
impacting some customers

Use customer insight to 
inform service recovery

Karen 
Williams

Housing 
Management Self Serve Communication M

A high proportion of our tenants able to 
do more for themselves. e.g. refer 
themselves for repeat prescriptions and 
food parcels 

Customer Plan - to consider 
what services we can reduce 
and push to self serve only 

Use customer insight to 
inform service recovery

Karen 
Loweman Various

Signature for 
documents M

Consider move to ID 
confirmation stamp or auto 
signature etc

Use technology to its full 
potential

Kirk Braker CBH Stock Levels
Should there be a central CBH emergency 
store, we have one for the repairs 
however not for the company.

Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Kirk Braker CBH Stock Levels Not enough stock levels kept. H
Again, limited number of stocked item for 
PPE, what should we hold in the future??

Ensure plans are flexible and 
sustainable

Tracey 
Brushett

Housing 
Solutions

Technology The desire to use technology more
Investigate what is out there.  Keep up to 
date with technological solutions.  Ask the 
Experts

Use technology to its full 
potential

Mark Wicks
Asset 

Management Technology

Currently have limited options whilst working out in 
the field which reduces options for managing works 
under social distancing. H

Adopt technologies which will reduce time 
required in offices, face-to-face contact, 
and increase efficiencies.

Use technology to its full 
potential

Karen 
Loweman OPS Technology

residents like frequent personal contact via chat, 
develop this to on line via technology L

Recommend review of technology in 
Sheltered housing and for older people 
with Helpline service

Explore ECC funding for 
technology for older and 
vulnerable people

Use technology to its full 
potential

Karen 
Loweman OPS Technology

Sheltered housing does not have adequate CCTV 
particularly door entry control M

Recommend that this is reviewed as part 
of the Broadband extension and with 
Helpline

Recommend that this is 
reviewed as part of the 
Broadband extension and 
with Helpline

Use technology to its full 
potential

Mark Wicks CBH/CBC Use of MS 'Teams'
Frequency of meetings has increased, and meeting 
etiquette is sometimes lacking. M

Adopt other methods of collaborative 
working and produce MS Teams Etiquette.

Use technology to its full 
potential
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Strategic Plan Assurance Report Q4 2019-20 - June 2020 

 
 
 

CBH Strategic Plan assurance report 
Q4 2019/20  

 

Customer plan 

Top 25% ALMO for satisfaction by 2022 
 

Value for money and technology plan 

Lowest 25% cost per property in the East by 2022 

 
 

People plan 

Times top 100 not-for-profit employer by 2022 
 

Business development plan 

£1.6m from trading income by 2022 (subject to annual review) 
 

Leadership plan 

Leadership that inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 2022 
 

Community plan 

A community enabling leader for Colchester by 2022 
 

 
 
Key 
 

On target 
Currently below target but 

expected to achieve 
target 

Unlikely to achieve target 
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Customer plan 

Top 25% ALMO for satisfaction by 2022 
 

Highlights 
• New Resident Engagement Plan 2020/23 approved by Board and published 
• Residents Panel reviewed Funding Streams, MTDP, KPI’s and Complaints 

process in February 2020   
• Tenants reviewed CBH website content and layout and made 

recommendations for changes and improvements.  
• Made changes to the IVR (interactive voice response) scripting for gas and oil 

calls to the CSC (Customer Service Centre) to reduce misdirected calls and 
improve customer satisfaction and first call resolution.  

• CRM (Customer Relationship Management) module design workshops held 
for Northgate Housing System  

• Mass mailouts to tenants advising on service changes, Universal Credit claims 
and support re COVID-19 

• Significant review of customer records, to ensure medical/disability data is 
correctly recorded (Aurora Project) 

• Started to make telephone contact with all tenants aged 70+ to offer support 
re COVID-19 

• Reduced face to face contact with tenants in sheltered accommodation, 
increased contact by daily welfare telephone calls. 

Forward look 
• Future Stage 3 

Complaints to be 
handled by the 
Governance 
Officer to ensure 
transparency 
and improve the 
perception of 
impartiality 

• Review of 
Resident Panel 
outcomes 
2019/20 

• Customer 
Survey for 
COVID recovery 
plan 

• COVID 19 
edition of the 
Housing News 
and Views 

• Activity 
Newsletter for all 
tenants in 
sheltered  

• Exploring digital 
engagement 
opportunities 

Risks, issues & support required 
• As a result of the current COVID-19 crisis some services have been 

suspended and may result in poor satisfaction post lockdown, including a 
potential rise in complaints following a quieter than average period during 
COVID-19. Satisfaction surveys for some services (e.g. ASB, adaptations) not 
currently being carried out due to prioritisation of critical services. 

• Bi-annual STAR customer satisfaction survey will be later than planned due to 
new approach by HouseMark and COVID-19. 

Progress measure 
2019/20 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

% overall satisfaction 92.8  92.8  91 92 
% satisfaction that we listen to & act on views of 
customers 

n/a n/a 66 71 

% customers accessing services digitally n/a n/a No 
target 

No 
target 

Completed resident engagement impact assessments 73 73 26 60 
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Value for money and technology plan 

Lowest 25% cost per property in the East by 2022 
 

Highlights 
• Successful mobilisation of remote working across the company in 

response to COVID-19, including urgent procurement and rollout of 
laptops and rollout of Microsoft Teams to the whole organisation to 
increase effectiveness of remote working. 

• SharePoint audit completed and recommendations received 
• Dashboards completed for all teams in Housing Options 
• Working with CBC to explore leasing and/or endpoint management 

plan for replacement of devices. 
• HouseMark results entered and queries currently being dealt with 
• Revised rent rounds on housing systems to support allocation of 

work changes in Housing Management 
• Development of productive & unproductive time dashboard for 

repairs operatives 
• Device training for operatives 
• Optitime (dynamic work scheduling system) upgrade 
• Resources being redirected where needed, e.g. to support critical 

services under COVID-19 but also business as usual, e.g. Business 
Intelligence Team supporting other functions, Service Improvement 
Officer carrying out tasks for Data Team and BI & SI Manager to 
manage Finance Team 

• Finance processes have moved to electronic sign offs and batching. 

Forward look 
• Enabling virtual Board 

meetings beginning in April 
2020 

• Business Intelligence & 
Repairs Team working 
together on improving 
accuracy of records, 
particularly on sub-
contractor works 

• Developing new data 
collection methods and 
Rough Sleeping 
Dashboard to monitor 
outcomes 

• Developing e-Forms for 
more efficient asset 
management handovers 

• Review of finance 
processes to increase 
efficiency, e.g. material job 
costing 

• New purchasing and credit 
card policies to reduce 
processing time 

• Take a structured view to a 
2nd phase of Microsoft 
Teams rollout 

• Development of temporary 
COVID-19 focused 
dashboard 

Risks, issues & support required 
• Potential KPI performance dips due to COVID-19 priorities. 

However, CBH/CBC well equipped to mobilise remote working and 
approach to prioritisation in line with other providers. 

• Programme 2020 service reviews on hold due to COVID-19 
• Unplanned PPE and IT equipment expenditure due to COVID-19 
• Increased employer pension contributions created a deficit of £200k 

for 2020/21 

Progress measure 
2019/20 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

£ cost per unit (repairs & housing management 
combined) 

836 
(2018/19) 836 

1024 (top 
quartile 
18/19) 

Top 
Quartile 

% staff satisfied with how CBH supports them in the 
technology they use 56 56 54 60 

£ cashable savings achieved 114k 114k 190k TBC 
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People plan 

Times top 100 not-for-profit employer by 2022 
 

Highlights 
• HR Response to COVID-19, including Managers and Staff Guides 

and Staff attendance and redeployment log 
• Annual Staff Survey carried out in Q4 
• Annual leave year changed for all staff to 1st Jan- 31 December and 

all annual leave is now managed electronically via iTrent 
• Annual Equality Data published 
• E-Learning HR Induction modules launched for new starters. 

Manual Handling, Drugs and Alcohol Awareness and Smoking 
Awareness also launched. 

• CMT received training from HR Team on managing a restructure  
• Work Placement from Military Correctional Training Centre plus 2 

mock interviews with detainees 
• Revised HR and Payroll SLA agreed with CBC  
• Leadership Commitment presentation and workshops ready to be 

launched 
• Training delivered Q4 - Professional Boundaries, Asbestos 

Awareness Refresher, Conflict and Resolution Training, Welfare 
Reform and Universal Credit Training and IOSH Leading Safely. 

• 8 starters and 7 leavers  
• Wellbeing Initiatives delivered included Time to Talk Day, Yoga 

Sessions delivered, Health Checks, Bootcamp and Fidget Cubes. 
• Consulted on the closure of the Salary Sacrifice Scheme with 

Unison and Staff Forum 
• Continuing to support CMT to manage Programme 2020 

Forward look 
• Rescheduling training 

cancelled for April & May 
• Suite of HR training to be 

rolled out to managers 
including absence 
management and 
conducting investigations 

• E-Learning unconscious 
bias and domestic abuse 
awareness courses 

• Review of E-Learning 
usage and return on 
investment 

• Drivers licence checks and 
data to be added to I-trent 

• Launch of Leadership 
Commitment 

• Formal sign up to the 
‘Dying to Work Charter’ 

• Revision of the appraisal 
process 

• Programme 2020 service 
reviews 

• Health surveillances for 
Operatives and 
Community Caretakers 

• Recruitment to next round 
of Management 
apprenticeships 

• Online reference request 
form 

Risks, issues & support required 
• Risk COVID-19 leading to high staff absence rates. CMT meetings 

taking place three times a week and staff attendance is being 
monitored daily. 

• Risk Recruitment for hard-to-fill posts. New approaches are being 
taken to advertise these roles, including paying market supplements 
of up to 2 years. 

• Risk Staff restructure leads to breach of employment legislation and 
/ or employee legal challenge. All CBH procedures and employment 
legislation followed. Trained HR staff. 

• Risk Poor level of IT skills with some staff which could adversely 
impact adoption of new technology to improve performance. Seems 
to be reflected in staff survey results. Office365 training has taken 
place across the company. Need to provide staff with ICT based e-
learning. 

Progress measure 
2019/20 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

% of staff who feel empowered to make decisions and have 
ownership of their work 

78 78 81 84 

% of staff who are supported by their manager to do the job 
to the best of their ability 

78 78 86 88 

% of employees who would recommend CBH as an employer 78 78 84 87 
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Business development plan 

£1.6m from trading income by 2022 (subject to annual review) 

 

Highlights 
• Works on the Mercury Theatre project continued throughout the quarter 

albeit at a reduced pace towards the end of March due to COVID-19. The 
site is fully COVID-19 compliant. 

• CBH appointed by Colchester Amphora Homes (CAHL) for RIBA stages 
4-7 for Military Road in March. This is a joint appointment from CBC for 
both CAHL and CBH to deliver 8 affordable homes for the Housing 
Revenue Account. 

• CBC appointed CBH to design, procure and manage (RIBA stages 1-7) 
the next Sheltered Housing Scheme Development, Elfreda House in 
Shrub End. Workshops have been held, specifications formed and 
drawings started. 

• Recruited Senior Building Surveyor and Project Manager on the 27th 
January. 

• The majority of the Building Maintenance Programme was completed with 
two projects being accrued for as work had started but did not complete 
before the COVID-19 lockdown on 23 March. This work will resume when 
safe to do so. 

• A review of the remaining garage sites within the housing stock was 
commissioned by CBC with a view to forming the next projects of phase 3 
of the garage development programme. 

Forward look 
• The first phase 2 

garage development 
project, Hardings 
Close, went out to 
tender in March to 
positive interest from 
contractors. 

• Two further phase 2 
garage development 
projects, Buffet and 
Scarfe Way, out to 
tender 

• Military Road tender 
out end of June, 
works planned to 
start on site August 
2020. 

• Presentation of 
drawings of Elfreda 
House to Project 
Board prior to 
detailed work up. 

• Building Services 
Engineer due to start 
in April. 

• Commission by CBC 
to conduct an 
options appraisal of 
the remaining 
sheltered schemes 
to inform the next 
development. 

Risks, issues & support required 
• Issue: Extended use of consultants to cover vacancies within the team. 

This has resulted in a ‘red’ KPI 1 – additional revenue £147k less than 
expected. 

• Mitigation: Although the full profit expected for each project will not be 
realised, savings on vacancies within the team and competitive consultant 
rates will not result in projects operating at a loss. 

• Risk: COVID-19 delays project start dates resulting in a loss of income. 
• Mitigation: The team is currently in a planning phase with the first major 

projects not due to start on site until the summer. Further commissions 
will be sought to conduct planning during the lockdown. Mercury Theatre 
project operating safety within government guidance and Site Operating 
Procedures (SOPs). 

 Progress measure 
2019/20 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

£ net additional revenue per annum (net of direct costs)  £270.2k £270.2k £417.2k £1.6m 
£ net profit per annum after overhead £131.8k £131.8k £146.8k £235k 
% of total company income that is non-Council 
management fee 

3.96% 3.96% 3.40% 2.97% 
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Leadership plan 

Leadership that inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 2022 

 

Highlights 
• New Board Chair has focused immediately following appointment on 

strengthening scrutiny and board engagement on key governance issues e.g. 
compliance and performance reporting 

• Board Chair induction programme has established visibility with service teams 
• Effective working relationship has been built between Chair and CBC Cabinet 

member, enabling productive dialogue on key strategic issues and opportunities 
• Completion of and Board sign-off on CBH self assessment document to aid 

review of CBC/CBH Management Agreement 
• New board report template introduced to aid scrutiny and effective use of board 

time 
• 360 degree Board appraisals conducted 
• Valuable contribution and buy-in from Board on developing a solution to effective 

board meetings which reflects strategic Value for Money objectives. 
• Completion of senior management review – new Head of Finance in post 
• Mentoring both within CBH and with CBC officers (both as mentors & mentees), 

strengthening relationships and increasing stakeholder confidence. 
• Board interim governance arrangements due to C-19 approved 
• Close collaboration with CBC on COVID-19 response has provided assurance to 

CBC 
• Strong organisational response to COVID-19 crisis has given confidence to staff 

and board  
• Regular messages to staff regarding response to COVID-19 and appreciation for 

staff, from management team, board and CBC 

Forward look 
• Exploring 

options to 
implement a 
technological 
solution to 
increase 
effectiveness 
of board 
meetings. 

• Agreement 
with CBC on 
process for 
reviewing 
CBC/CBH 
management 
agreement 

• Consider 
process and 
focus for next 
board 
governance 
review. 

Risks, issues & support required 
• COVID-19 pandemic has required interim virtual governance arrangements to be 

put in place at short notice 
• Home working and virtual meetings creates the potential for employees to feel 

more disconnected from their managers and the wider organisation  

Progress measure 
2019/20 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

% staff confident in the Directors Management Team 
leadership 

65 65 72 74 

Stakeholder confidence in CBH’s leadership n/a n/a n/a TBC 
Board skills required vs current Board Skills Matrix (1-4) 3.4 n/a n/a TBC 
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Community plan 

A community enabling leader for Colchester by 2022 

 

Highlights 
• Community Plan booklet approved by Board in annual summary and 

circulated to One Colchester Operational group 

• Community Plan posting activity to Yammer and via CBH website to support 
communities 

• Linking local Facebook groups with CBH info pages to better inform 
community 

• Strengthened community links and local support groups through award of 
£24k of grant funding 

• Staff survey “The Happiness index” puts giving back to the Community as 

one of the key drivers for our staff satisfaction (although score had dropped 
by 1%) Latest score is 78% 

• Community group met at Willow Brook School community room to plan event 
to focus community on recycle and re use 

• Made use of local Re cycle organisation to re furnish Elfreda house for 
Rough sleepers “Everybody in” to reduce COVID-19 infection  

• Visit to Abberton Rural activity project to initiate project for team building and 
outreach activity to support recovery of rough sleepers 

• New recycling areas in place for those living in flats 
• Staff volunteering activities to support the Food bank, hospice and hospital 

grounds 
• Developing further online services for Housing Solutions to assist with 

housing advice 
• Partnership across Colchester strengthened to support the community to 

cope with the pressures of COVID-19.  Weekly strategic and operational 
meetings with CBH supporting immediate response to the Shielded and 
vulnerable groups  

Forward look 
• Develop service 

models which the 
community can 
engage with – e.g. 
support with 
online services 
and access 

• Recovery from 
COVID impact 
through support 
for local 
communities and 
the local economy 
to assist people 
back into 
employment 

Risks, issues & support required 
• EQIA for online services to mitigate service access for those who are not 

able to access on line or telephone services 

• Widening community outreach through staff contacts and volunteering 
• Developing work with Parish councils 

Progress measure 
2019/20 
outturn 

Latest 
Current 
target 

2022 
target 

The value of our social impact on communities £414K £414k No target No target 
% staff who agree that CBH has a positive impact on the 
wider local community 79 79 85 88 

 



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

Wednesday 1st July 2020 
 
 
 

Report Title Item 7B - Health and Safety Compliance Report  

Author David Barthram – H&S, Environmental & CDM Manager 
David.Barthram@cbhomes.org.uk 
(01206) 282433 

Report Objective: To inform the Board of the current status of activities relating to all aspects of 
Health and Safety Compliance.    

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

The latest regulator of Social Housing operational response survey results can be 
found below (Published 9th June) 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac
hment_data/file/890878/CORS_survey2_May_2020_responses_report.pdf 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☐ 

Home☒ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting  
Open   Approval  

 
  Recommendations 
  The Board is asked to: 
  
  I.NOTE the Health and Safety Report  
 
  Executive summary 
  
 The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of the current status of activities relating to Health  
and safety compliance.                                

 
   

 
 

 
 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/890878/CORS_survey2_May_2020_responses_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/890878/CORS_survey2_May_2020_responses_report.pdf
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1. Compliance Assurance  

 
 
1.1 Sheltered Schemes - CBH have 19 sheltered schemes and compliance data for each location 
varies as not all sites/communal areas have the same services installed. Some schemes are 
dispersed, and the compliance is picked up under the general needs service programs. 
The Electrical Installation Condition Report to Elfreda House is due in July and will be carried out 
from 29th June 2020 (booked with contractor). 
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1.2 General Needs Blocks/Housing - Data detailed below covers over 6000 properties, however 
compliance data for each property/building will differ due to what CBH must legally service within a 
domestic dwelling, and what services are connected or installed at each location. 

 
 

 
  

Gas inspections –  At the end of May 19 gas safety inspections were overdue because of more 
limited property access through tenants isolating or shielding through Covid.   
 
Overdue inspections on a month by month basis are as follows: April – 1, May – 18.   The Board is 
asked to note Mears have reported a positive change in customer attitudes toward their gas 
service, and full assurance on control measures for tenant safety are being communicated to them 
before contractor access is granted. 
 
Overdue Asbestos inspections for 2/3 storey general needs blocks 
Currently 99% of 3 storey blocks have an asbestos survey in place and 90% of 2 storey blocks.  
 
2 - Storey are now 90% complete based on the figures above. The COVID 19 pandemic reduced 
the capacity for surveys (key contractors were on Furlough), however, we are currently recovering 

Type of 
Service/inspection/assess
ment 

Number 
of 
properti
es  

How many properties 
have been 
serviced/inspected/ass
essed  

Partially 
compliant – 
service/inspect
ion not 
overdue but 
outstanding 

Overdue visits  
Non-compliant 
– 
service/inspect
ion overdue   

Gas 5,214 5107 0 19 
Legionella – Water risk 
assessments completed 
for 3 story blocks with 
water storage tanks. 

65 
 
 

65 0 0 

Electrical – EICR  
5-year compliance  

 
6,298 
 

 
3,299 
 

 
2,999 
 

 
0 
 

Fire safety inspections – 
communal area 
inspections completed by 
community caretakers 
every 12 months (April 
19 – March 20)  
Blocks - 
Stairwells - 

 
 
 
177 
467 

 
 
 
177 
467 

 
 
 
0 
0 

 
 
 
0 
0 

Asbestos 
surveys/inspections  
2 story blocks  
3 story blocks  
Maisonette   
 
 

 
447 
107 
235 
 

 
406 
106 
235 

 
0 
0 
0 

 
41 
1 
0 
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the position and plan to have all surveys completed by August 2020. 
 
Legionella – Water risk assessments in 2 storey blocks  
 
The CBH Water risk assessment program does not currently include 2 storey blocks.  To ensure 
compliance, investigations have been carried out which indicate that most of the blocks have been 
switched to mains water supply with a combi boiler installed.  However, there are 12 locations that 
need further investigation to identify if cold water storage tanks are in place in lofts spaces.  
 
We have completed 50% of the investigations to 2 storey blocks.  From the studies completed we 
have established that all properties have combi boilers, electric heating with unvented cylinders or 
individual tanks housed in the kitchen or bathroom, therefore, there is no requirement for a risk 
assessment.  We are continuing with investigations, and will provide a further update in the next 
compliance report 
 
Electrical Installation Conditioning report (EICR)  
 
This test is carried out to check the safety and condition of electrical installations in rented domestic 
properties.  The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has recently 
introduced regulation that requires Social rented homes to have a test every 5 years, commencing 
July 2020.  The EICR will provide documentation as proof for tenants that the electrical installations 
are safe. 
 
As at the 19th June 2020, there were 2,999 properties without an EICR (within 5 years old) on 
record.  
 
The testing works have not been carried out during the COVID 19 lock-down period, because the 
test takes around 3 hours to complete, and requires access to every room in the home. The risk of 
taking the virus in to home outweighed the risk to defer the testing schedule.  We are now 
mobilising contractors to recommence works during July.  Meanwhile, as agreed with CBC our 
Asset Management team are procuring a new contract due commence in August, the programme 
expects to achieve full compliance of EICR testing by the close of 2020/21, subject to tenants 
permitting access to their homes. 

 
 

1.3 Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) – Sheltered Schemes 
  

 
Fire risk assessments have been put on hold in sheltered schemes due to COVID-19 risks to staff 
and tenants, however with the easing of lockdown control measures, the aim is to start fire risk 
assessments in early July 2020. 

 
There are currently 12 overdue FRA’S and the health and safety team aim to recommence the 
completion of FRA’S in July/August 2020. Risks are part mitigated by desk top assessment of 
facilities and weekly visits to the schemes by Sheltered visiting officers. Interim fire safety 

Fire risk assessments  Number of 
properties  

How many properties have been 
serviced/inspected/assessed  

Outstanding 
visits  

Overdue 
visits  

General needs blocks  433 433 0 0 
Sheltered schemes  19 7 0 12 
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inspections have been implemented within sheltered scheme communal areas which covers fire 
doors, fire escape routes and compartmentation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 Fire Risk Assessment Actions 
 
FRA Actions  High Priority Medium Priority  Low Priority  
Documented Actions 454 37 4 
Overdue Actions  408 14 2 

 
 
The Board are asked to note that COVID-19 lockdown restrictions have had a significant impact on  
works to address the FRA actions, meaning a high number of actions are now overdue. The 
overdue actions pertain to fire door upgrades/replacements, and compartmentation repairs. 

 
CBH recovery plans have been created and FRA actions will addressed as a matter of priority, 
while ensuring staff and tenant safety.  
 
The Board are reminded that CBH are reporting to the Regulator of Social Housing through a 
monthly survey to ensure they have up-to-date information from providers on the issues that the 
sector has said are particular operational risks: gas and fire safety checks, care and support 
staffing levels, emergency repairs, and other health and safety checks. The Board are asked to 
note that CBH are not regarded as an outlier in terms of impact and this is a national picture across 
the sector.  
 
1.5 Fire safety inspections - Gosbecks road and Greenstead housing offices remain closed, but 
the community caretakers and facilities manager ensure fire alarm testing and security inspections 
continue. Rowan house fire safety inspections are completed by CBC.  
 
The community caretakers have worked to ensure that flat blocks communal area fire safety 
inspections are now up to date, after being unable to complete inspections for several weeks due to 
covid-19 restrictions.   
 

2. Accidents, Incidents and Near Misses 
 
April 2020 - Firefighters were called to Smallwood Road around 4.28 am following reports of a fire 
in a bedroom. Crews arrived to find half of a first floor flat on fire and filled with heavy smoke. 
The fire service stated that the flat suffered significant damage rendering it uninhabitable. The 
ground floor suffered smoke damage and extensive water damage, leaving two families uninjured 
but homeless.  Essex County Fire and Rescue records that the fire was due to a faulty hair dryer 
within the first-floor property.  The flat had working smoke alarms. 

21 May 2020 – Two garden sheds and a summerhouse were destroyed in a garden fire in Willett 
Road, Colchester.  No injuries sustained. 

 
 

3. Rowan house return to work preparation - Covid-secure workplace  
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CBH and CBC Health and safety teams carried out an inspection of Rowan House on the 19th June 
in order to progress a covid-secure working environment.  

 
A COVID-19 H&S audit template has been created on Assure for office areas, the first audit will be 
completed at Rowan house before the office is opened for staff to use, this audit will then continue 
throughout to ensure health, safety, fire and COVID inspections are in place and monitored.  
 
The health and safety team will begin to conduct H&S audits on CBH staff, contractors and sites 
from July 2020 onwards, ensuring covid-19 guidelines are always adhered to.  
 

4. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
 
 
Covid-19 has significantly increased the demand for Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), which 
is a challenge the H&S team has been able to overcome, we have ensured all PPE that is required 
to frontline workers when requested is available and delivered. 
 
 
A PPE slideshow has been created using guidance from the Health & Safety Executive, World 
Health Organisation and government guidance in a non-health and non-care setting to provide 
guidance to CBH staff. The main messages detailed for staff is that PPE is the last form of 
protection. Social distancing, ventilation and improved hygiene practices must be implemented 
before PPE is considered.   
 
 

  



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

Wednesday 1st July 2020  
 
 
 

Report Title  Item 7C - Void progress  

Author Karen Loweman 
Karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk 
Tel: 07769 671170 

Report Objective:  Board update on key area of performance 
Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

 2019/20 Year end performance on target despite difficulties during the year 
 2020 – impact of COVID-19 on management of empty properties 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☐ 

Home☐ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting  
Open  Approval  

 
  Recommendations 
  The Board is asked to: 
 

i.NOTE that the contractors (Breyer) and in-house team performance improved considerably in the 
last 6 months of 2019/20 to deliver performance within the target at year end. 
 
ii.NOTE the target set for delivery will be reviewed with the Council at the end of September, to 
take account of the impact of COVID-19 

   
Executive summary 
 

The COVID-19 pandemic has had an adverse impact on our ability to process empty properties for 
re letting.  We have informed the Council that the target set may not be possible to achieve, and 
this will be reviewed with the Council client at the end of September 2020. 
This report provides a brief summary of the impact of COVID-19 on our management to re let 
empty homes 

 
 

mailto:Karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk
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1. Report Introduction 

Throughout 2019/20 the Board have monitored the performance for the time taken to re let empty 
properties.  This emphasis helped to monitor the performance of a new contractor, Breyer and 
improve internal process resulting in, on target (25 days) year end performance of 24.29 days.  
 

 
 
Note improvement of those properties let within 0 to 3 weeks: 
 

 
 
 
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, with the announced “lock down” on 23 March 2020, led to 
our contractor furloughing staff and not continuing with works to vacant properties.   
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Government guidance (ref 3a) restricted citizens from moving home from the 26 March, greatly 
reducing the number of properties becoming vacant, but also our in-house teams' ability to repair 
them for re let.  Supplies for refurbishing property have been more difficult to obtain with our key 
supplies closed, and materials such as paint and plaster at times not available. 
 
The guidance issued on the 26 March permitted allocation and letting of property to those in an 
emergency only, which was clarified by the Council with a local letting policy.  The Gateway to 
Homechoice (ref 3b) was closed for bidding on homes, with any homes available being directly re 
let in accordance with guidance and the letting policy. 
 

2. Report Content 
 
The restrictions in place since COVID-19 lockdown have reduced our resources, however our team 
who complete work to empty properties have worked well to continue some works for us to re let 
some empty properties.  Where extensive improvement works have been required, such as new 
heating systems, kitchens or bathrooms works have had to be deferred until such time and 
workforce and materials become available. 
 
During April and May, 29 properties have been re let. 
  
Resulting in an average re let time to end of May of 33.5 days.  (April 22 days; May 36 days).  It 
should be noted that the re let period has increased from an average of 7 days during 2019/20, to 
an average of 23 days during April and May.  This reflects the difficulties in directly allocating 
properties and supporting people with moves through a time of restriction. 
 
However, by re letting properties we are not faced with a significant backlog of empty homes and 
anticipate that performance will recover as the National lock down eases. 
 
The Councils client officer reviews performance with CBH monthly, and we have agreed that the 
targets and performance to date will be reviewed at the end of September. 
 
Government guidance for moving homes was amended on 21 May 2020, and the home choice web 
site has re-opened. 
 
In the first week of opening 19 properties were advertised in Colchester of which 11 were CBC 
homes.   
  
Risk assessments have been undertaken and processes amended to reflect social distancing and 
public health requirements: 
 

• Where properties are vacant following death of a tenant, a period of 72 hours is left prior to 
any access to the property 

• The workforce in each property is limited to allow social distancing, which can delay 
completion of maintenance works 

• Applicants are sent information and photographs/videos of properties ahead of any viewing 
• Viewing are restricted to 2 adults only.  
• Staff have received briefings to permit safe viewing and completion of property acceptance 

paperwork with residents 
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3. References 

(a) https://www.gov.uk/guidance/government-advice-on-home-moving-during-the-coronavirus-
covid-19-outbreak 
 
(b) https://www.gatewaytohomechoice.org.uk/ 
 
 

 
 
 
 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/government-advice-on-home-moving-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreak
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/government-advice-on-home-moving-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreak
https://www.gatewaytohomechoice.org.uk/
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Report Title Item 7D - Approval of Revised Budget 20/21 and Proposed Cash Flow Forecast 

Author Cong Gu – Head of Finance 
cong.gu@cbhomes.org.uk 
 

Report Objective: To Note the proposed process to approve revised budget 20/21 and proposed 
cashflow forecast 

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

Revising the 2020/21 budget will allow accurate monitoring of budget for the 
remainder on the financial year. 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting   
Open  Approval  

 
  Recommendations 
  The Board is asked to  
 
   i.NOTE the proposed process to approve the revised budget for 2020/21 
   ii.NOTE the proposed cashflow forecast 
 

Executive summary 
 

The revised budget is to acknowledge the disruption to normal services caused by Covid-19 and 
to reflect the recovery plans in operations, revenue repairs and capital works. Furthermore, the 
revised budget needs to include the additional pension contributions required to close the 
pension deficit as a result of the 3-year determination by the Essex Pension Fund. 

  
 
  Implications:  

 
Strategic Plan  Good budgetary management is a key part of the VFM and Technology 

Plan and revising the budget due to the current situation and its impact on 
the budget streams is good practice. 

Regulatory/Legal 
 

There is no legal or regulatory requirement to revise the budget, but it will 
provide accurate and transparent accounting when reporting the year end 
position. 

mailto:cong.gu@cbhomes.org.uk


 

2 
 

Financial/Budgetary Revising the budget will ensure better financial and budgetary 
management, meaning budget holders are clear on their position and can 
deliver their services effectively. 

Health & Safety No implications. 
Risk Assessment  There are 3 financial strategic risk, one of which remains red … 

‘Poor budget management or unavoidable/difficult to manage cost 
pressures require resources to be diverted from areas of need’. The 
implication of not revising the budget will increase the impact of this risk as 
one of the mitigating factors is accurate monthly monitoring of budgets. 

Human Resources No implications. 

Equality and 
Diversity  

No implications. 

Value for Money A consolidated position ensures expenditure is reported across the whole 
of the business.  Robust forecasting ensures that any potential efficiencies 
can be utilised in the area of greatest need throughout the business. 

 
1. Revised budget 2020/21   
 

Due to the disruption to operations caused by Covid-19 and the additional pension 
contributions required following the determination made by the Essex Pension Fund in 
February, the budget for 2020/21 needs to be revised.  The budget will also require re-profiling 
as capital and revenue works resume and the plan to spend the original budget provision in a 
much shorter timeframe.  Agreeing the original budget was a Board decision and therefore it is 
important that any significant changes are brought back to the Board for agreement. 
 
The revised budget will be presented to the Finance and Audit Committee on the 29th July 2020 
and following any revisions discussed at that meeting, a final revised budget will be presented 
to the Chair of the Board by the Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee.  The Chair of the 
Board will then seek agreement from all Board members through an electronic decision.   
 
To allow all Board members the opportunity to comment on the revised budget prior to being 
asked to make a decision, the paper to be presented to the Committee on the 29th July will be 
circulated to all Board members.  All Board members will also be invited to attend the Finance 
and Audit Committee for this item to allow participation in the discussion and the opportunity to 
ask any questions. 

 
Board members will be asked to notify the Governance Officer whether they would like to 
attend in advance. 

 
2. Proposed cashflow forecast 
 

Appendix 1 is the proposed cashflow forecast which has superseded the quarterly static cash 
position reporting. This cashflow forecast is based on the original budget for 2020/21 so will be 
updated accordingly once the revised budget is approved. The cashflow forecast is updated 
weekly.



 
 

Appendix 1  
 

 

CBH Weekly Cashflow Forecast

Actual Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
balance b/fwd Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Income
From CBC 205,247 3,070,660 2,747,812 1,301,785 1,407,337 1,279,363 1,331,306 1,282,139 1,277,270 1,370,435 1,277,270 594,896
Other Income 13,277 772 3,329 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
VAT repayment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Income 218,524 3,071,432 2,751,140 1,301,785 1,407,337 1,279,363 1,331,306 1,282,139 1,277,270 1,370,435 1,277,270 594,896

Expenditure
Salaries 466,634 376,065 502,086 502,086 502,086 502,086 562,894 502,087 502,086 502,086 502,086 502,086
NIC 40,964 153,254 47,183 47,183 47,183 47,183 55,316 47,183 47,183 47,183 47,183 47,183
Pension 103,413 133,749 95,689 95,689 95,689 95,689 106,998 95,689 95,689 95,689 95,689 95,689
CIS Payments 22,431 0 25,000 25,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 25,000 25,000 60,000
VAT payments 0 109,860 0 0 500,000 0 0 500,000 0 0 500,000 0
Barclayscards 14,933 0 24,796 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Payment Runs 570,674 878,034 556,649 750,000 860,000 663,000 884,000 642,000 806,250 676,000 642,000 800,000
Other Payments 16,105 5,324 3,483 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Expenditure 1,235,155 1,656,286 1,254,886 1,434,959 2,069,959 1,372,959 1,674,208 1,851,959 1,516,209 1,360,959 1,826,959 1,519,959

as at 31.03.20 1,428,805

cash in/(out)flow  (1,016,631) 1,415,147 1,496,254  (133,174)  (662,622)  (93,596)  (342,902)  (569,820)  (238,939) 9,477  (549,689)  (925,063)

Cummulative Cash in/(out)flow 412,174 1,827,320 3,323,575 3,190,401 2,527,779 2,434,184 2,091,281 1,521,462 1,282,523 1,292,000 742,311  (182,752)



 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

Wednesday 1st July 2020 
 
 
 
Report Title Item 8 - Strategic Risk Register Update 

Author Matt Armstrong 
Matt.armstrong@cbhomes.org.uk 
Tel: 07951 013364 

Report Objective: The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of the current strategic 
risks to the company and to provide an update on the progress of the 
mitigating actions.  It also provides an opportunity for Board Members to 
suggest and consider any emerging strategic risks.  
 

Matters to 
note/Exception 
Highlights 

The change in risk types and setting of the risk appetite proposed by the 
Finance and Audit Committee has been included in the risk assessments. 

 
 
 
Link to Consumer 
Standard objective 

Tenant involvement and empowerment☐ 

Home☒ 

Tenancy☐ 

Neighbourhood and community☐ 

Sensitivity Commercial  Action Assurance  
Confidential  Noting  
Open  Approval  

 
  Recommendations 
  The Board is asked to: 
  
1. APPROVE the strategic risk register and note progress on mitigating actions. 

   
  Executive summary 
  

The strategic risk register highlights to Board members which delivery plans hold strategic risks 
and the mitigations in getting those risks within target (based on the risk appetite of the Board).  
The risk score is based on the CBH risk framework and is scrutinised at the Finance and Audit 
Committee. 
 
There are 8 strategic risks, one which remains red. 
 
 
 

mailto:Matt.armstrong@cbhomes.org.uk
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  Implications:  

 
Strategic Plan  The strategic register is based on risks identified from the 6 strategic 

delivery plans. 
 

Regulatory/Legal 
 

Reviewing and maintaining a strategic risk register highlights regulatory and 
legal risks the company is exposed to.  A balanced approach to risk 
mitigates the chance of regulatory breaches whilst remaining operational 
and within budget. 
 

Financial/Budgetar
y 

Robust risk management and financial management is required to ensure 
that service delivery is not compromised and that financial exposure is 
mitigated. 
 

Health & Safety Two of the strategic risks are Health and Safety based, the implications are 
the identification and actioning of tasks to mitigate these risks. 
 

Risk Assessment  If the Company does not have a robust Risk Management Strategy and 
Action Plan, then its progress to achieving its key goals will be impaired or 
unachievable. 
  

Human Resources One of the aims of the risk management process is to ensure that any 
possible adverse impact on staff is assessed and mitigated as appropriate, 
be that from a chance happening or a business decision. Two of the 
strategic risks are under the risk type - People. 
 

Equality and 
Diversity  

Equality impact assessments are carried as part of everyday operations, so 
the risks identified have no implications in this area.  Any mitigations 
proposed would consider the impact on the equality of those groups 
affected. 
 

Value for Money Strong financial control will identify and drive efficiencies, enabling 
resources (both financial and people) to service provisions that may require 
it.  
 

Environmental and 
Sustainability  

As risks are identified and mitigated, consideration is given to what green 
initiatives can be included in any actions.  These will feed into the Council’s 
carbon reduction management plan.  
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1. Report Introduction  
There are 8 strategic risks of which 1 remains red, 4 amber and 3 are green.  This report 
sets out those risks and updates Board members on the mitigating actions already taken 
and those action planned.  All strategic risks are now in the new risk format. 
 
Of the 8 risks, 3 are financial risk types, 2 quality of service, 2 people and 1 reputational.  
The risks listed by strategic delivery plan are 2 from the Value for Money and Technology 
Plan, 2 from the Business Development Plan, 2 from the Customer Plan and 1 each from 
the People and Leadership Plans. 
 

2. Progress on mitigating actions (Red) 
 
The red risk is from the VFM and Technology Plan: 
 

• Poor budget management or unavoidable/difficult to manage cost pressures 
require resources to be diverted from areas of need. 

 
The risk is scored with a likelihood of 4 (likely to occur once a year) and with a serious 
(score of 3) impact, resulting is a financial loss of between £20,000 to £50,000. 
 
The mitigation which will reduce both the likelihood of the risk occurring and the financial 
impact would be the introduction of a finance IT system which would allow for electronic 
controls on budget management, monitoring and introduce financial controls.  At present 
this is being done manually and with a vast number of budget codes, overspend is more 
likely to happen. The IT system, ABS, is a CBC system are there has been a struggle to 
implement the system due to work and time pressures on the CBC finance team.  A 
scoping exercise is planned within the next 2 months together with establishing an 
implementation timeline. 
 
New financial forecast formats presented to budget holders monthly should assist in 
managing budgets and the introduction of Finance Business partners as part of the 
Finance team review will target support and assistance. 
 
Spending due to Covid-19 will have an impact on this year’s budgets but this is likely to be 
countered with less work being conducted during the period and a re-profiling of budgets 
due to be presented to the Finance and Audit Committee on the 29th July 2020. 
 
The target score for this risk is a reduction in likelihood to ‘possible’, the event occurring 
once every 5 years; and reducing the impact from 3 to 1 (minor) which limits the financial 
loss to under £5,000. 
 

3. Progress on other mitigating actions (Amber and Green) 
Progress has been made across all risks and particular focus has been on reducing the 
covid-19 related issues which had initially increased the score of some risks and tested the 
mitigations already in place.  The recovery project has been able to mitigate all covid-19 
risks through careful planning, adhering to government guidelines and the ability to conduct 
much of our work, albeit in some cases a reduced service, remotely. 
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4. Strategic Risk Register 
The strategic risk register is shown below in the new format, additions in red represent 
covid-19 issues. 
 

5. Emerging Risks 
As the Government eases restrictions and financial safety packages come to an end, work 
is currently being done to identify those new challenges (and risks) which this will pose.  
The emerging risk register will be complete by the 29th July 2020 to be scrutinised at the 
Finance and Audit Committee.  Board members views are welcome on identifying those 
emerging risks for the executive team to investigate, consider and report back. 
 



 

Risk Number: 013 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: Business Development Plan Business 

Objective: 

1. Develop a flexible resourcing 
strategy to ensure availability of key 
professional skills 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

↙ 4 3 12 3 3 9 2 2 4 

Risk High staff fixed cost making it likely that CBH would make a loss if net turnover reduces  Type Financial 

Causes 

Lack of commissions from CBC; 
Incorrect pricing and fees not recovered; 
Site work not possible under C-19 restrictions; 
DCM Team fall ill with C-19. 

Consequence
s 

If turnover net off specialist subcontractor fees fall CBH will make 
losses; 
Underutilised staff. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

Financial Loss: The impact financially is never likely to drop below the £10,000 - £50,000 bracket (score of 2).  Due to the nature of receiving 
commissions the probability of this happening (target score of 2 - once every 10 years) is only achievable with some form of commission 
guarantee. 

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 
Ensure mix of staff meets requirements of 
future projects. Posts re-evaluated and 
graded at a higher level in order to attract 
and retain high quality staff.  

Create guaranteed income streams 
(Garage development and Sheltered 
Refurbishment). Nov 2020 

Director of 
Business 
Improvement 

Reduces Likelihood. 

Continually forecast fee income for next 2-3 
years to identify if turnover will fall below 
break-even level. 

Develop contract clauses to protect CBH 
against losses in a 2nd wave of C-19. 31 July 

2020. 

Head of Design and 
Construction 
Management 

Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

Good relationship with CBC client team. 
CBH sit on majority of project forming 
groups. 

  
    Reduces Likelihood. 

Review of construction SOP's for operating 
sites during C-19 restrictions; 
Bring forward projects achievable using C-19 
SOP's. 

      Reduces Impact 
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DCM Team working from home where 
possible; 
Consider redeployment options from CBH to 
cover key roles. 

      Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

Regular review of fee forecast, emerging 
projects and monthly cashflow by DMT and 
Business Development Panel. 
Annual submission of business plan to BDP 
and Board. 

      Reduces Likelihood and Impact. 

Explore ways to find self-employed contract 
staff to cover peak demand.        

No team vacancies. A small 
number of freelancers have 
been identified for design and 
specialist roles. 
Reduces Likelihood. 

Responsibility
: 

Director of Business 
Improvement Input From: 

Head of Design and 
Construction 
Management 

Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.19 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 23.06.20 

          

Risk Number: 041 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: Business Development Plan Business 

Objective: 
4. KPI £ net additional revenue / 
profit 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

↙ 4 3 12 3 3 9 2 2 4 

Risk Trading fails to generate planned amounts of additional revenue. Type Financial 

Causes 

Lack of commissions from CBC; 
Incorrect pricing and fees not recovered; 
Site work not possible under C-19 restrictions; 
General Funded project stopped due to C-19 cost 
implications. 

Consequence
s 

Increased financial pressure on CBH; 
Potential to make losses if net revenue falls below cost of team; 
Funds not available to invest in developing the business and 
enhancing tenants homes and communities. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

Financial Loss: The impact financially is never likely to drop below the £10,000 - £50,000 bracket (score of 2).  Due to the nature of receiving 
commissions the probability of this happening (target score of  2 - once every 10 years) is only achievable with some form of commission 
guarantee. 
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Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 

5 year Business Plan established with trading 
targets.  

Review fee forecast annually or after any 
significant change ie. Market increases, 
increased staff / fixed costs 

31 Mar 2021 
Head of Design and 
Construction 
Management 

Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

Outturn forecast updated monthly. 
Create guaranteed income streams 
(Garage development and Sheltered 
Refurbishment). 

Nov 2020 
Director of 
Business 
Improvement. 

Reduces Likelihood. 

Business Development Panel scrutinise 
performance through profit/loss by project. 

Develop contract clauses to protect CBH 
against losses in a 2nd wave of C-19. 

31 July 
2020. 

Head of Design and 
Construction 
Management 

Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

Good relationship with CBC client team. 
CBH sit on majority of project forming 
groups. 

        

Review of construction SOP's for operating 
sites during C-19 restrictions; 
Bring forward projects achievable using C-19 
SOP's. 

        

Focus work on HRA funded projects.         

Project list scrutinised by DMT monthly and 
BDP quarterly.         

Forecast scrutinised by DMT monthly and 
BDP quarterly.         

Responsibility
: 

Director of Business 
Improvement Input From: 

Head of Design and 
Construction 
Management 

Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.19 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 23.06.20 

          

Risk Number: 242 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: Customer Plan Business 

Objective: 4. Improve access to services 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 
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Likelihoo
d 

← 4 3 12 2 3 6 2 2 4 

Risk CBC/CBH has no working Housing Management System as existing system ceases to 
function before new housing system is fully operational. Type Quality of Service 

Causes 

Software failure; 
User error - deletion of key tables or coding; 
Project Aurora delayed / failed to implement new 
system; 
Hacking. 

Consequence
s 

Operating efficiency severely affected without a reliable housing 
system;  
Prolonged downtime if housing system not supported;  
Increased operating costs;  
Increased risks of poor service delivery and complaints.  

Risk Rating 
Justification 

Quality of Service: Likelihood is reduced greatly through the experience of the Housing System Team, the impact of Capita failing is reduced as 
the implementation of the Northgate system is brought on-line. 

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 

Project to replace the Housing Management 
System underway (project Aurora). 

Extension to Project Aurora which will 
allow more time to build and test the 
system. 

23.06.20 Head of ICT and 
Business Intelligence 

Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

Current supplier has confirmed that housing 
system can be used after the De-Support 
date, but without any support.   

Purchase of consultant days from 
Northgate to increase team capacity. 23.06.20 Head of ICT and 

Business Intelligence Reduces Impact. 

De-support notice extended from 1st Sept to 
1st Nov 2020.       Reduces Likelihood and 

Impact. 
Housing Systems team have experience in 
resolving issues within the system and have 
seldom required Capita assist them. 

      Reduces Impact. 

Access limited to capita look-up tables.  
Trained team members only given access 
(min 6 months). 

      Reduces Likelihood. 
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Access to Capita through CBC firewalls to 
prevent hacks, viruses, corruption etc.       Reduces Likelihood. 

Capita data backed up daily on CBC server.       Reduces Impact. 

Responsibility
: 

Head of ICT and Business 
Intelligence Input From: 

Programme & Project 
Manager Aurora 
Housing Systems Business 
Partner 

Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.19 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 22.06.20 

          

Risk Number: 261 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: Customer Plan Business 

Objective: 
6. Trusted choice for local housing, 
property and community services. 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

← 5 4 20 2 3 6 2 2 4 

Risk 
Health and Safety risk to customers and public including unintentional breaches of 
leglislation / best practice, exposure to hazardous substances, failure to maintain 
housing stock and public buildings to safe standard. 

Type People 

Causes 

Compliance breach; 
Unqualified staff / contractors working on housing stock 
or corporate buildings; 
Lack of H&S training; 
No safe system of work in place (reporting, monitoring, 
inspections, audit). 

Consequence
s 

Death or injury to customers or public;  
Facilities being closed as unsafe;  
HSE investigation / notice / fine 
Legal challenge and financial claim; 
Judgement issued by the Housing Regulator. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

People: Unmitigated, this risk will certaintly occur.  The likelihood is reduced significantly by having a fully integrated H&S system within every 
work stream and department.  Impact is harder to mitigate but through safety products (by design) and correct signage / information / 
education the seriousnes of injury can be reduced, but not totally. 

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 
Staff structure 
 * Qualified H&S Manager 
 * Qualifed staff managing projects and 
properties  

      Reduces Likelihood. 
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Use of H&S software - Assure.  Allows 
electronic reporting and monitoring, task 
manager system, production of management 
data  

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Integrated safe system of work - comply to 
(but not accredited) to BSI 18001 and 9001.  
Management structure in place with named 
duty holders. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Insurance - public liability up to £10m       Reduces Impact. 

Internal Audit - independent auditors and 
independent trade body inspections.  
Trained CBH BSI auditors with an internal 
programme in place. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Comprehensive H&S training programme 
including toolbox talks, in-house training, 
external training and qualified NEBOSH staff. 

      Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

  
Communicate safety message to 
customers and general public ie. Signage, 
information, education, warnings. 

31.03.21 
Health, Safety, 
Environment & 
CDM Manager  

Reduces Impact. 

  Design and install 'safety by design' 
products. 31.03.21 Head of Repairs & 

Maintenance 
Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact.  

Responsibility
: 

Head of Repairs & 
Maintenance Input From: 

Health, Safety, 
Environment & CDM 
Manager  

Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.2019 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 23.06.20 

          

Risk Number: 451 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: People Plan Business 

Objective: 
5. Wellbeing 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

↔ 5 4 20 2 2 4 2 2 4 
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Risk 
Generic H&S risk to all staff including breach or failure to address legislation, lone 
worker risks, abuse/assualt risk from customers or others, accidents in offices or work 
sites / home, exposure to harmful substances or objects, unsafe work places. 

Type People 

Causes 

Compliance breach; 
Not following process or poor data collection and 
sharing; 
Lack of H&S training and no induction; 
No safe system of work in place (reporting, monitoring, 
inspections, audit). 

Consequence
s 

Death or injury to staff  
HSE investigation / notice / fine 
Legal challenge and financial claim; 
Judgement issued by the Housing Regulator. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

People: Unmitigated, this risk will certaintly occur.  The likelihood is reduced significantly by having a fully integrated H&S system within every 
work stream and department.  Impact is harder to mitigate but through safety products (by design) and correct signage / information / 
education the seriousnes of injury can be reduced, but not totally.  

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 
Staff structure 
 * Qualified H&S Manager 
 * Qualifed staff managing projects and 
properties  

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Use of H&S software - Assure.  Allows 
electronic reporting and monitoring, task 
manager system, production of management 
data. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Integrated safe system of work - comply to 
(but not accredited) to BSI 18001 and 9001.  
Management structure in place with named 
duty holders. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Insurance - public liability up to £10m       Reduces Impact. 

Internal Audit - independent auditors and 
independent trade body inspections.  
Trained CBH BSI auditors with an internal 
programme in place. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Comprehensive H&S training programme 
including toolbox talks, in-house training, 
external training and qualified NEBOSH staff. 

      Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 
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Lone worker solution in place, annual 
training and updates.       Reduces Likelihood. 
Employment of security at interview 
locations.       

Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact.  

Communicate safety message to staff ie. 
Signage, information, education, warnings.       Reduces Impact. 

Design and install 'safety by design' products.       Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact.  

Responsibility
: 

Head of Repairs & 
Maintenance Input From: 

Health, Safety, 
Environment & CDM 
Manager  

Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.19 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 23.06.20 

          

Risk Number: 521 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: VFM and Technology Plan Business 

Objective: 
2. Using Technology to work 
smarter. 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

← 4 3 12 2 3 6 2 2 4 

Risk New technology does not have the necessary capabilities to enable improved 
productivity, lower costs or enhanced services. Type Quality of Service 

Causes 

Incorrect specification; 
Lack of training; 
Procuring sub-standard devices due to budget or poor 
procurement. 

Consequence
s 

No gains from technology in terms of cost saving or improved 
services; 
Failure to meet Plan's KPI of % of staff who feel productivity 
improved through technology. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

Quality of Service: The likelihood has been greatly reduced by working closely with CBC who purchase the majority of our software systems. The 
impact is difficult to reduce if the equipment is sub-standard to begin with, however training to get the best from devices will help reduce the 
score from serious (3) to significant (2). 

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 

CBH Strategic delivery plan in line with CBC 
strategic ICT priorities.       Reduces Likelihood. 
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Project Aurora being monitored by its own 
project board.  Replacement housing system 
is identified as the major IT contributer to 
performance improvement and efficiency. 
Training and device specification within 
project scope. 

      Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

IT Strategy group meet monthly to prioritise 
and approve IT investment and 
developments.  CBC/CBH ICT Liaison meeting 
monthly to review and discuss current and 
new systems. 

      Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 

Dedicated SharePoint Officer to build site 
and ensure efficient ways of working.       Reduces Likelihood. 

IT Helpdesk to provide quick resolution to 
individual IT issues.       Reduces Impact. 

  Establish costed device renewal plan 
based on user requirements. 15.07.2020 Head of ICT and 

Business Intelligence Reduces Likelihood. 

  Establish a costed mobile renewal plan 
based on user requirements. 15.07.2020 Head of ICT and 

Business Intelligence Reduces Likelihood. 

  Systems and device training targeted at 
every level of user capability. 31.03.2021 Head of ICT and 

Business Intelligence Reduces Impact. 

  

Establish an annual budget for the 
renewal of devices and mobiles to ensure 
cyclical, modern upgrades with the 
necessary specifications. 

29.07.2020 
Director of 
Business 
Improvement 

Reduces Impact. 

Responsibility
: 

Head of ICT and Business 
Intelligence Input From: Head of Finance 

IT and Support Manager 
Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.2019 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 23.06.20 

          

Risk Number: 542 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: VFM and Technology Plan Business 

Objective: 
Directing resources to where they are 
needed most. 
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Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

↙← 4 3 12 4 3 12 3 1 3 

Risk Poor budget management or unavoidable/difficult to manage cost pressures require 
resources to be diverted from areas of need. Type Financial 

Causes 

Lack of budget management training for budget holders; 
Additional spend actioned prior to correct sign-off / 
authorisation; 
External event / decision increases demand on service. 

Consequence
s 

Resources cannot be focused on areas of need as they have been 
consumed elsewhere; 
CBH makes a deficit. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

Financial: The finance team are going through significant changes and we are awaiting a electronic finance system to be implemented.  As lots of 
processes and monitoring is manual the probability (score of 4 - Likely - once a year) cannot be reduced. The impact (score 3 - Serious - £20-
£50k) cannot be reduced without electronic authorisations / barriers. 

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 

CMT and F&A review of financial monitoring 
reports and forecast outturn monthly. 

Electronic monitoring (implementation of 
ABS - MyBudget) of budgets allowing 
budget holders to be notified immediately 
of status.  

01-Nov-20 Head of Finance Reduce Likelihood and Impact. 

Control process for pay costs.       

All additional pay costs require 
a form authorised by DMT, CEO 
and input from finance.  
Reduces Likelihood and impact. 

Update Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy, 
introduce a risk management framework. 
Board to set risk appetite. 

Risk Management training for CMT and 
Board Members. 31.07.20 

Director of 
Business 
Improvement 

Reduces impact. 

Finance meeting with budget holders. Introduction of finance business partners. 31.03.21 Head of Finance Reduces Likelihood. 

Level of reserves allows CBH to absorb in 
year deficit without requiring emergency 
funding from CBC. 

Introduce a Treasury Management policy. Oct 2020 Head of Finance Reduces Likelihood. 
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Use of government grant for C-19 additional 
costs; 
Move to critical services in order to meet 
demand. 

Monitor C-19 spend by service area tbc Head of Finance Reduces Likelihood and impact. 

Responsibility
: 

Director of Business 
Improvement Input From: Head of Finance Date Risk 

Recognised 01.08.2019 Date Risk Last 
Reviewed 29.04.2020 

          

Risk Number: 611 Strategic Delivery 
Plan: Leadership Plan Business 

Objective: 
1. To develop high quality leadership 
and management. 

Mitigation status 
/ Direction of 

Travel 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 
Likelihood 

Unmitigate
d (inherent) 

Impact 

Unmitigated 
(inherent) 
Risk Rating 

Current 
(residual) 
Likelihoo

d 

Current 
(residual) 

Impact 

Current 
(residual) 

Risk Rating 

Target (residual) 
Likelihood 

Target 
(residual) 

Impact 

Target Risk 
Rating 

↔ 4 4 16 1 3 3 1 3 3 
Risk That the Management Agreement with CBC is not extended beyond 2023. Type Reputational 

Causes 

Lack of trust in CBH management (by CBC); 
CBH move away from the strategic priorities of CBC; 
CBH service delivery failure; 
CBH receive judgement from the Housing regulator for 
breach of Home Standard. 

Consequence
s 

Closure of CBH; 
Staff disruption and job losses; 
Tenants receive poor quality of service. 

Risk Rating 
Justification 

Reputational: Difficult to assign one risk type to a risk where the worst outcome is the closure of the company.  The likelihood is easier to reduce 
than mitigating the impact of the decision being made, the only reduction possible in impact is to limit the disruption to Tenants. 

Mitigations / Controls Currently in Place Additional Planned Mitigating Actions 
(and owner) 

Dates for 
Actions Owner Target Outcome (ie effect of actions 

on risk rating) 
Self-assessment report written and 
presented to CBC.       Reduces Likelihood. 

Maintain good relationships with CBC from 
Portfolio Holder, to CEO, SMT and Client 
Team. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Meet the targets set in the MTDP and ensure 
successes are communicated to 
stakeholders. 

      Reduces Likelihood and 
Impact. 
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Listen to our Residents and share our 
successes to ensure any future Tenant vote 
is made with all information to hand. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

Learn from other ALMO's who have 
succeeded in extending their Management 
Agreements. 

      Reduces Likelihood. 

  

Ensure complaints are minimised but 
when they occur, put the Customer first 
and address the issue fairly and in a timely 
manner.  Share Case studies with CMT 
and Line Managers. 

01.09.20 
Head of ICT and 
Business 
Intelligence 

Reduces Likelihood. 

  

Ensure services are robust and can be 
maintained without the input of the 
corporate management team if 
departments were to be taken back in-
house by CBC. 

31.03.21 CMT Reduces Impact. 

Responsibility
: Chief Executive Input From: Corporate Management 

Team 
Date Risk 
Recognised 01.04.2019 Date Risk Last 

Reviewed 23.06.2020 
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RESIDENT PANEL CHAIRS REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD   
 

Recommendations 
The Board is asked to: 
 

1) NOTE the highlights of matters discussed at the Residents Panel on the 15th June 2020  
2) NOTE the minutes of the meeting at appendix A 

 
Executive summary 
 

This report separates the work of the Residents Panel into a stand-alone report. This 
report highlights the matters discussed at the Residents Panel in December 2019. 

 
1. Headlines from the Residents Panel 15th June 2020 

 
• The meeting was attended by Michael Campbell, Paula Goddard and an invited panel of 2 

other CBH residents.   

• The focus of the meeting was to discuss what had been happening in Covid times and to 
gain feedback and listen to experiences that residents had.  

• The panel meeting was promoted through Social media and contact with residents who 
expressed an interest in the topic and took place via Zoom 

• The residents were asked a range of questions to contemplate ahead of the meeting: 

1. What has been your most positive or negative experience in relation to CBH since Covid? 

2. What barriers have you encountered if any? 
 

3. Has CBH been able to support you? 

4. How have you found the information supplied to you from CBH? 

• This was a beneficial meeting as it provided CBH staff with an insight into understanding the 
reality of residents lives through this pandemic. Also, feedback provided at this meeting has 
been used to improve our communications with residents and to highlight where support 
needs to be provided.  

Recommendations 
The Board is asked to: 
 

1) NOTE the highlights of matters discussed at the Residents Panel on the 
15th June 2020 

2) NOTE the minutes of the meeting at appendix A 
 
 



 
Minutes of the Residents Panel 
 
Held at 5pm on Monday 15th June 2020 
Via Zoom 
 
Michael Campbell - Chair Matt Armstrong - CBH 
Paula Goddard – Vice Chair Ray Sharp - Resident 
Karen Loweman - CBH Nicola Davey – Resident 
Mark Healey - CBH Jo Paget - CBH 

 
1. Welcome and apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and apologies were received from Lorna 
Preece 

The Chair advised this panel was an opportunity to talk about what had been happening in 
Covid times and to gain feedback and listen to experiences that residents had. 

 

2. What has been your most positive or negative experience in relation to CBH since 
Covid? 

The Chair asked if members would like to share their most positive or negative experience in 
relation to Colchester Borough Homes during the lockdown and advised he would like to 
start this conversation with his own feedback.  

MC advised that as he was shielding, he found that information regarding services that could 
help him, such as food delivery and collecting prescriptions had been a lifeline. He had 
contacted Essex Welfare Services and received a call back within 15 minutes and had a 
volunteer turn up at his door 10 minutes later to pick up his shopping list. Community 360 
also assisted him to collect prescriptions and were continuing to do so until further notice.  

He advised that he also received monthly visits from the team to test his emergency buzzer 
and to see if there was anything he needed and received weekly calls. He continued that he 
would give the support he received 11 out of 10 at a time where he had been worried, 
people have gone beyond to help him.  

MC also advised that he had problems with his toilet plumbing and the when he called the 
repairs team came out and fixed the problem within half an hour. He felt the service had 
been excellent.   

RS advised that he was living in sheltered accommodation and had received weekly calls 
and now the team were starting to visit on a weekly basis.   

RS advised that were he lived there was a real community spirit and he felt that his only 
negative comment was with regards to how the public areas had been handled.  He advised 
that they had expected CBH to come and make the public areas safe so they could still be 
used but unfortunately the doors were just shut off.  As a consequence, the social activity 
that normally goes on the scheme was taken away, which is an important part of life.  

KL advised that this had been tricky one for CBH to deal with as they had to follow 
government guidance. The team had worked really hard to not lockdown sheltered schemes 



 
and to not stop visitors coming, and the communal areas had to be closed to prevent the 
spread of the virus.   

 

KL advised that now as the country moved into recovery, CBH could look to ease this and 
re-open communal areas so that they were safe for everyone to use.  

RS advised that this would be a positive thing for residents. The communal areas at his 
scheme were big so social distancing could be adhered. He advised that some of the ladies 
had been meeting up in the garden when the weather was nice but on rainy days this had 
caused some upset.  

PG advised that she had been blown away by the communications that had come out to 
residents as this had kept her updated and, in the loop, as to where CBH were at with 
information such as repairs and other services. She advised that it had not been an 
overwhelming amount of information and it was recognition from CBH that they were 
considering their tenants and wanted to keep them informed.  

MH asked how PG had been receiving these communications? PG advised that she had 
received letters updates, Housing News and Views and followed social media updates. She 
could not recall receiving anything via email.  

MC agreed that there had been a steady conveyor belt of information that had been really 
useful, and he was very grateful to the team for keeping him informed.  

KL advised that she had sounded out resident Board Members as to the best way to 
communicate with residents and it was agreed that CBH would send letters so that CBH 
were confident that all residents were receiving communication.  She advised that she was 
going to try and send emails to those that CBH had contact details for.  

3. What barriers have you encountered if any? 

RS advised that apart from being stuck inside, which had been a natural barrier due to him 
having to shield, he had encountered no barriers with CBH 

PG advised that she had a query on a fence and whose responsibility it was, but this was not 
an urgent enquiry so could wait and was not causing a barrier.  

KL advised that if PG sent an email to the info@CBH address her housing manager could 
take a look at the enquiry for her and would get her a response.   

PG advised that one barrier identified had been that prior to lockdown the housing officers 
were changed but she was yet to hear from hers. A quick hello or communicated introduction 
would be appreciated. MC also advised that he had not had any contact from his.   

4. Has CBH been able to support you? 

RS advised that feedback he had received from neighbours who had had to contact 
emergency repairs were that the service had not been impaired, and they had been pleased 
with the service received.  

 

 



 
5. How have you found the information supplied to you from CBH? 

PG advised that due to the quality of information she had received she had been able to 
assist others and point them in the right direction which was great.  

KL asked if there was anything that the group would like to see or hear from CBH in the next 
communication? 

ND joined the meeting.  

PG advised that Housing officer details would be welcomed and to add MH’s contact details 
in the letter if other residents wished to provide any feedback.  

ND advised that she had also not heard from her Housing Officer either and to have heard 
from them at a time like this time would have been nice.  

MC advised that a letter or email from the Housing officer to say hello would be welcomed 
and they could also provide information about the resident panel in their introduction. 

ND continued that CBH had been on the ball, informative and had been very helpful with a 
rubbish problem. She advised that CBH had achieved above and beyond what could have 
been expected in such a short time frame. 

PG advised that services had still provided even though it was acknowledged that people 
were now working from home and this was testament to all the Management and Staff at 
CBH.  

MC updated the group that he and Paula had been attending weekly Board meetings and 
could assure residents that CBH had been active and consistent with their approach to 
dealing with the pandemic and the results they had achieved were a credit to them, 
especially where they had assisted bringing rough sleepers off of the street.  

ND asked what is happening with rough sleepers as we go into recovery? KL outlined what 
action had been taken with rough sleepers from the 26th March. She advised that CBH were 
now starting to move people on to more settled temporary accommodation and were using 
housing association partners with 1 bed properties to hep facilitate this.  

KL advised that had been some really positive stories through this time, where people had 
come into accommodation who wouldn’t have had previously and they had been able to 
apply for benefits and drug prescriptions and turn their lives around.  

6. General Questions  

MA asked the group if there were any communication from other companies that CBH could 
learn from? The group advised that they could not think of anything and that CBH had been 
their main source of communication. MA thanked the group and advised if they did think of 
anything to let the team know.  

KL advised the group that the communications were putting together a video regarding 
social distancing in relation to repairs so that residents could understand what CBH were 
asking of them.  

 

 



 
MH advised that he was looking at new ways of getting tenants engaged and were looking to 
target those under the age of 50 to make their voices heard. He also advised that anything 
that CBH now looked to change or adapt would involve input from tenants or leaseholders so 
there would be the residents panel and other meetings to discuss what the changes would 
be and how this would impact residents lives.  

MH advised that PG had agreed to do a blog to promote the residents’ panel and to give a 
real-life insight into what it involves and the benefits of being involved.  

MC asked if it was possible to get together/join with the Greenstead residents’ panel to get 
an update on activities happening there? ND advised that she was a member and there was 
a lot of concern around poverty on the estate and the fact that the usual scheme would not 
be able to run at Unity School where they provide meals for the children. The community 
centre is looking to open from July in some form and if funding was available, they could 
provide a sandwich and somewhere to pick the up the food from. Tenants were also worried 
about rent arrears as a lot of them were losing their jobs.  

ND advised that there were also a lot of vulnerable children on the Greenstead estate which 
was causing concern for parents especially not knowing if they would be returning to school 
or not and providing childcare if they needed to return to work.  

KL advised that she would be able to raise this issue across Colchester to see if CBH could 
help with any of these issues. She advised that she had a meeting on Wednesday where 
she could raise these concerns across the community to see what could be done to help 
these children and to see what resources could be available for activities to be carried out at 
home with their families. She advised that Sport England were currently looking at sports 
equipment and where this could be allocated.  

The Chair thanked everyone for attending and advised the next panel would take place on 
Monday 24th August 2020.  
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